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HOCHTIEF

PPP

HOCHTIEF PPP Solutions North
America, Inc.

Office Toronto:

2 Bloor Street East, Suite 701
Toronto, ON M4W 1A8
Canada

Phone: 647 259 3740
Fax: 647 259 3741

Office New York:
. 375 Hudson Street, 6 Floor
Form G-1: Material Changes New York, NY 10014
USA

Phone: 212 229 6479
Fax: 212 229 6416

June 1, 2017

High Performance Transportation Enterprise and Colorado Bridge Enterprise
c/o High Performance Transportation Enterprise

4201 East Arkansas Avenue

Denver, Colorado 80222

Attn: Keith Stefanik, Procuring Authorities’ Contact Person

Re. Material Changes Letter .
in connection with the Instruction to Proposers for the Central 70 Project (“ITP")

We, Mike McGuinty, in my capacity as President, and Cecil Kramer, in my capacity as Secretary of
HOCHTIEF PPP Solutions North America, Inc. (the “Company”), an Equity Member and a member of the
Lead Operator in Front Range Mobility Group, and not in our personal capacities, deliver this letter
pursuant to Section 3.2 of the Administrative and Technical Proposal Submission Requirements and
hereby confirm as follows.

There have been no material changes in the Company’s financial capacity since Proposer submitted its
SOQ and no material changes are anticipated to occur during the remainder of the Company’s current
fiscal year.

Unless defined herein, capitalized terms used in this letter have the meanings given to them in the ITP.

Yours sincerely,
for HOCHTIEF PPP Solutions North America, Inc.

Authorized Signatures: :

Name: Mike McGuinty Name: Cecil Kramer
Title:  President and Treasurer Title:  Secretary

Infrastructure Investments for the Future
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HOCHTIEF

PPP
NORTH AMERICA

HOCHTIEF PPP Sclutions North
America, Inc.

Office Toronto:

2 Bloor Street East, Suite 701
Toronto, ON M4W 1A8
Canada

Phone: 647 259 3740
Fax: 647 259 3741

Office New York:

375 Hudson Street, 6™ Floor

New York, NY 10014
Form G-2: Off Balance Sheet Liabilities USA

Phone: 212 229 6479
Fax: 212 229 6416

June 1, 2017

High Performance Transportation Enterprise and Colorado Bridge Enterprise
c/o High Performance Transportation Enterprise

4201 East Arkansas Avenue

Denver, Colorado 80222

Attn: Keith Stefanik, Procuring Authorities’ Contact Person

Re. Off Balance Sheet Liabilities Letter
in connection with the Instruction to Proposers for the Central 70 Project (“ITP”)

We, Mike McGuinty, in my capacity as President, and Cecil Kramer, in my capacity as Secretary of
HOCHTIEF PPP Solutions North America, Inc. (the “Company”), an Equity Member and a member of the
Lead Operator in Front Range Mobility Group, and not in our personal capacities, deliver this letter
pursuant to Section 3.3 of the Administrative and Technical Proposal Submission Requirements set out in
the ITP and hereby confirm as follows.

There are no off balance sheet liabilities for any fiscal year of the Company in respect of which financial
statements have been submitted in accordance with Section 3.1 of the Administrative and Technical
Proposal Submission Requirements that exceed $25 million in aggregate in such fiscal year.

—

Name: Mike McGuinty Name: Cecil Kramer
Title:  President and Treasurer Title:  Secretary

Yours sincerely,
for HOCHTIEF PPP Solutions North America, Inc.
Authorized Signatures:

Infrastructure Investments for the Future
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Central 70 Project: Instructions to Proposers Final RFP
Part H: Form G-3 Addendum No. 1

Front Range
Mability Group

Form G-3: Credit Ratings
Proposer Name: Front Range Mobility Group
Credit Ratings
Role Entity Name Fitch Moody’s | S&P DBRS | Change(s)in any | Describe Change(s)
credit ratings
since SOQ?
EM, LO HOCHTIEF PPP Not Not Not Not [JYes X No
Solutions North rated rated rated rated
America, Inc.
EM, LO | ACS Infrastructure Not Not Not Not [JYes X No
Development, Inc. rated rated rated rated
EM, LO AECOM Capital, Inc. Not Not Not Not [dYes X No
rated rated rated rated
EM John Laing Investments Not Not Not Not OYes X No
Limited rated rated rated rated
LC Flatiron Constructors, Not Not Not Not OYes X No
Inc. rated rated rated rated
LC Dragados USA, Inc. Not Not Not Not OYes X No
rated rated rated rated
LC AECOM Energy & Not Not Not Not [dyes X No
Construction, Inc. rated rated rated rated
LE CH2M HILL Engineers, Not Not Not Not [dyes X No
Inc. rated rated rated rated
LE AECOM Technical Not Not Not Not OYes X No
Services, Inc. rated rated rated rated
FRP HOCHTIEF Not Not BBB Not X Yes [1No Now rated by S&P
Aktiengesellschaft rated rated rated
FRP HOCHTIEF PPP Not Not Not Not [dyes X No
Solutions GmbH rated rated rated rated
FRP HOCHTIEF USA, Inc. Not Not Not Not [dYes X No
rated rated rated rated
FRP ACS Servicios y Not Not Not Not [dYes X No
Concesiones, S.L. rated rated rated rated
FRP AECOM Not Ba2 BB Not X Yes [1No Now rated by S&P in addition
rated rated to Moody'’s; Moody'’s rating
has not changed since the
S0Q
FRP Dragados, S.A. Not Not Not Not [dyes X No
rated rated rated rated
FRP John Laing Group plc Not Not Not Not [dyes X No
rated rated rated rated
FRP CH2M HILL Companies, | Not Not Not Not [dYes X No
Ltd rated rated rated rated
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INFRASTRUCTURE DEYELOPMENT 0

June 1, 2017

High Performance Transportation Enterprise and Colorado Bridge Enterprise
c/o High Performance Transportation Enterprise

4201 East Arkansas Avenue

Denver, Colorado 80222

Attn: Keith Stefanik, Procuring Authorities’ Contact Person

Re, Material Changes Letter
in connection with the Instruction to Proposers for the Central 70 Project (“ITP”)

Mr. Stefanik:

I, Juan Mont, in my capacity as Chief Treasury and Accounting Officer of ACS Infrastructure Development, Inc. (the
“Company”), an Equity Member and member of the Lead Operator in Front Range Mobility Group, and not in my
personal capacity, deliver this letter pursuant to Section 3.2 of the Administrative and Technical Proposal
Submission Requirements and hereby confirm as follows:

There have been no material changes in the Company's financial capacity since Proposer submitted its SOQ and
no material changes are anticipated to occur during the remainder of the Company’s current fiscal year.

Unless defined herein, capitalized terms used in this letter have the meanings given to them in the ITP.

Respectfully Submitted,

Juan M
Chie ugy and Accounting Officer
A RASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT, INC.

One Alhambra Plaza | Suite 1200 | Coral Gables, FL 33134
Main Tetephone: +1-305-424-5400 ] Main Facsimile: +1-305-424-5401
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INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT 0

June 1, 2017

High Performance Transportation Enterprise and Colorado Bridge Enterprise
c/o High Performance Transportation Enterprise

4201 East Arkansas Avenue

Denver, Colorado 80222

Attn: Keith Stefanik, Procuring Authorities’ Contact Person

Re. Off Balance Sheet Liabilities Letter
in connection with the Instruction to Proposers for the Central 70 Project (“ITP")

Mr. Stefanik:

I, Juan Mont, in my capacity as Chief Treasury and Accounting Officer of ACS Infrastructure Development, Inc. (the
“Company”}, an Equity Member and member of the Lead Operator in Front Range Mobility Group, and not in my
personal capacity, deliver this letter pursuant to Section 3.3 of the Administrative and Technical Proposal

Submission Requirements set out in the ITP and hereby confirm as follows:

There are no off balance sheet liabilities for any fiscal year of the Company in respect of which financial statements
have been submitted in accordance with Section 3.1 of the Administrative and Technical Proposal Submission
Regquirements that exceed $25 million in aggregate in such fiscal year.

Respectfully Submitted,

Juan Mont 34/\/ :
d Accounting Officer

TRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT, INC,

One Alhambra Plaza | Suite 1200 | Coral Gables, FL 33134
Main Telephone: +1-305-424-5400 | Main Facsimile: +1-305-424-5401
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Central 70 Project: Instructions to Proposers Final RFP
Part H: Form G-3 Addendum No. 1

Front Range
Mability Group

Form G-3: Credit Ratings
Proposer Name: Front Range Mobility Group
Credit Ratings
Role Entity Name Fitch Moody’s | S&P DBRS | Change(s)in any | Describe Change(s)
credit ratings
since SOQ?
EM, LO HOCHTIEF PPP Not Not Not Not [JYes X No
Solutions North rated rated rated rated
America, Inc.
EM, LO | ACS Infrastructure Not Not Not Not [JYes X No
Development, Inc. rated rated rated rated
EM, LO AECOM Capital, Inc. Not Not Not Not [dYes X No
rated rated rated rated
EM John Laing Investments Not Not Not Not OYes X No
Limited rated rated rated rated
LC Flatiron Constructors, Not Not Not Not OYes X No
Inc. rated rated rated rated
LC Dragados USA, Inc. Not Not Not Not OYes X No
rated rated rated rated
LC AECOM Energy & Not Not Not Not [dyes X No
Construction, Inc. rated rated rated rated
LE CH2M HILL Engineers, Not Not Not Not [dyes X No
Inc. rated rated rated rated
LE AECOM Technical Not Not Not Not OYes X No
Services, Inc. rated rated rated rated
FRP HOCHTIEF Not Not BBB Not X Yes [1No Now rated by S&P
Aktiengesellschaft rated rated rated
FRP HOCHTIEF PPP Not Not Not Not [dyes X No
Solutions GmbH rated rated rated rated
FRP HOCHTIEF USA, Inc. Not Not Not Not [dYes X No
rated rated rated rated
FRP ACS Servicios y Not Not Not Not [dYes X No
Concesiones, S.L. rated rated rated rated
FRP AECOM Not Ba2 BB Not X Yes [1No Now rated by S&P in addition
rated rated to Moody'’s; Moody'’s rating
has not changed since the
S0Q
FRP Dragados, S.A. Not Not Not Not [dyes X No
rated rated rated rated
FRP John Laing Group plc Not Not Not Not [dyes X No
rated rated rated rated
FRP CH2M HILL Companies, | Not Not Not Not [dYes X No
Ltd rated rated rated rated
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Central 70 Project: Instructions to Proposers Final RFP
Part H: Form G-3 Addendum No. 1

Front Range
Mability Group

Form G-3: Credit Ratings
Proposer Name: Front Range Mobility Group
Credit Ratings
Role Entity Name Fitch Moody’s | S&P DBRS | Change(s)in any | Describe Change(s)
credit ratings
since SOQ?
EM, LO HOCHTIEF PPP Not Not Not Not [JYes X No
Solutions North rated rated rated rated
America, Inc.
EM, LO | ACS Infrastructure Not Not Not Not [JYes X No
Development, Inc. rated rated rated rated
EM, LO AECOM Capital, Inc. Not Not Not Not [dYes X No
rated rated rated rated
EM John Laing Investments Not Not Not Not OYes X No
Limited rated rated rated rated
LC Flatiron Constructors, Not Not Not Not OYes X No
Inc. rated rated rated rated
LC Dragados USA, Inc. Not Not Not Not OYes X No
rated rated rated rated
LC AECOM Energy & Not Not Not Not [dyes X No
Construction, Inc. rated rated rated rated
LE CH2M HILL Engineers, Not Not Not Not [dyes X No
Inc. rated rated rated rated
LE AECOM Technical Not Not Not Not OYes X No
Services, Inc. rated rated rated rated
FRP HOCHTIEF Not Not BBB Not X Yes [1No Now rated by S&P
Aktiengesellschaft rated rated rated
FRP HOCHTIEF PPP Not Not Not Not [dyes X No
Solutions GmbH rated rated rated rated
FRP HOCHTIEF USA, Inc. Not Not Not Not [dYes X No
rated rated rated rated
FRP ACS Servicios y Not Not Not Not [dYes X No
Concesiones, S.L. rated rated rated rated
FRP AECOM Not Ba2 BB Not X Yes [1No Now rated by S&P in addition
rated rated to Moody'’s; Moody'’s rating
has not changed since the
S0Q
FRP Dragados, S.A. Not Not Not Not [dyes X No
rated rated rated rated
FRP John Laing Group plc Not Not Not Not [dyes X No
rated rated rated rated
FRP CH2M HILL Companies, | Not Not Not Not [dYes X No
Ltd rated rated rated rated
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John laing

High Performance Transportation Enterprise and Colorado Bridge Enterprise
c/o High Performance Transportation Enterprise

4201 East Arkansas Avenue

Denver, Colorado 80222

Attn: Keith Stefanik, Procuring Authorities’ Contact Person

May 24th, 2017

Re. Statement regarding John Laing Investments Limited 2016 unaudited financial statements

In accordance with the requirements set forth under 3.1.1(a)(iii)(B) of Part F of the Instructions to Proposers
(“ITP”), | Patrick O’'D Bourke, as Director of John Laing Investments Limited (“JLIL") and Group Finance
Director of John Laing Group plc, confirm that audited financial statements for the 2016 financial year for
JLIL are unavailable at the time of making this statement. The audited 2016 financial statements for JLIL
are currently in the final stages of the audit process and are due to be finalized and signed by the end of
May-2017.

Unaudited 2016 financial statements for JLIL are however available and have been submitted in
accordance with the requirements of 3.1.1 of Part F of the ITP. | hereby confirm that these give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at 31 December 2016 and of the profit for the year then
ended.

Yours,

Patrick O’D Bourke

John Laing Investments Ltd
1 Kingsway

London

WC2B 6AN

Tel: +44 (0)20 7901 3200
Fax: +44 (0)20 7901 3520
www.laing.com

Registered in England Registered Number: 780225 Registered Office: 1 Kingsway, London, WC2B 6AN



John laing

High Performance Transportation Enterprise and Colorado Bridge Enterprise
c/o High Performance Transportation Enterprise

4201 East Arkansas Avenue

Denver, Colorado 80222

Attn: Keith Stefanik, Procuring Authorities’ Contact Person

May 31st, 2017

Re. Statement regarding John Laing Investments Limited and John Laing Group plc’s USD
financial statements

This is to confirm that the financial statements for 2015 and 2016 for John Laing Investments Limited and
John Laing Group plc, as converted into US dollars and submitted in accordance with the requirements set
forth under 3.1.1(h) of Part F of the Instruction to Proposers, were prepared by a certified public accountant
and converted to US dollars based on the end of calendar year rates conversion requirement.

1 Kingsway

London

WC2B 6AN

Tel: +44 (0)20 7901 3200
Fax: +44 (0)20 7901 3520
www.laing.com
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AND
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Registered number: 00780225



JOHN LAING INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Group Income Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2016

Continuing operations

Interest income

Dividend income

Net gain on investments at fair value through profit or loss
Other income

Operating income

Administrative income/(expenses)

Profit from operations

Finance costs

Profit before tax

Tax charge
Profit after tax

Attributable to:

Owner of the Company

Notes

10

11

2016 2015
$ million $ million
47.3 38.1
95.2 38.4
119.3 123.7
0.9 -
262.7 200.2
1.8 (41.5)
264.6 158.7
(12.5) (15.6)
252.1 143.1
(29.1) (6.2)
223.0 136.9
223.0 136.9
223.0 136.9

There is no other comprehensive income or expense apart from that disclosed above and consequently a statement of

comprehensive income has not been prepared.



JOHN LAING INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Group Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2016

Balance at 1 January 2016

Profit after tax and total comprehensive income for the year
Net transfer on investments revaluation

Retranslation

Balance at 31 December 2016

Balance at 1 January 2015

Profit after tax and total comprehensive income for the year
Reduction of share capital

Net transfer on investments revaluation

Retranslation

Balance at 31 December 2015

Revaluation reserve

Revaluation Accumulated Total
Share capital reserve profit/(loss) equity
$ million $ million $ million  $ million
- 604.8 551.0 1,155.8
- - 223.0 223.0
- 136.0 (136.0) -
- - (195.1) (195.1)
- 740.8 442.9 1,183.7
Revaluation Accumulated
Share capital reserve profit/(loss) Total equity
$ million $ million $ million $ million
46.7 513.9 508.7 1,069.3
- - 136.9 136.9
(46.7) - 46.7 -
- 90.9 (90.9) -
- - (50.4) (50.4)
- 604.8 551.0 1,155.8

The revaluation reserve represents the accumulated revaluation arising on investments at fair value through profit or loss.

The net transfer on investments revaluation represents the change in the value of investments between cost and fair value.

Accumulated profit/(loss)

The accumulated profit/(loss) reserve represents the accumulated profit or loss since the incorporation of the Company.



JOHN LAING INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Group Balance Sheet
As at 31 December 2016

Non-current assets
Investments at fair value through profit or loss

Current assets

Debtors - due within one year

Debtors - due after more than one year
Other financial assets

Cash at bank and in hand

Total assets

Current liabilities

Creditors - amounts falling due within one year
Current tax liabilities

Short-term borrowings

Net current liabilities

Deferred tax liability

Total liabilities

Net assets

Equity

Share capital
Revaluation reserve
Accumulated profits

Equity attributable to owner of the Company

Total equity

Notes

12

13
13
14
14

15

16

19

20

2016 2015

$ million $ million
1,487.0 1,300.6
1,487.0 1,300.6
36.0 19.0
18.9 24.2
25.2 170.9
56.8 0.4
136.9 2145
1,623.9 1,515.0
(179.1) (322.6)
(8.3) (2.4)
(203.4) -
(390.8) (325.0)
(253.9) (110.5)
(49.3) (34.3)
(440.1) (359.3)
1,183.7 1,155.8
618.5 580.6
565.2 575.2
1,183.7 1,155.8
1,183.7 1,155.8

The financial statements of John Laing Investments Limited, registered number 00780225, were approved by the Board of

Directors and authorised for issue on 26 May 2017. They were signed on its behalf by:

P O'D Bourke
Director
26 May 2017



JOHN LAING INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Group Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2016

Notes

Net cash inflow from operating activities 21

Investing activities
Net cash transferred to investments held at fair value through profit or loss

Decrease/(increase) in other financial assets

Proceeds from disposal of investments

Proceeds from loan repayments from project companies

Investment in/acquisition of project companies and other investments
Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities

Loans (to)/from parent undertakings
Loans to group undertakings
Proceeds from borrowings

Interest paid

Net cash from financing activities

Net increase in cash at bank and in hand
Cash at bank and in hand at beginning of the year
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash at bank and in hand at end of the year 14

2016 2015

$ million $ million
13.2 87.2
(0.9) (63.8)
132.9 (104.3)
140.1 108.3
6.8 -
(287.8) (132.9)
(8.9) (192.7)
(105.2) 159.9
(32.7) (37.5)
203.4 -
(13.6) (16.6)
52.0 105.8
56.3 0.3
0.4 0.2
0.2 (0.1)
56.9 0.4
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JOHN LAING INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Group Profit and Loss Account
for the year ended 31 December 2015

2015
$ million

Continuing operations
Interest income 38.1
Dividend income 38.4
Net gain on investments at fair value through profit or loss 123.7
Other income .
Operating income 200.2
Administrative expenses (41.5)
Profit from operations 158.7
Finance costs (15.6)
Profit before tax 143.1
Tax (6.2)
Profit after tax 136.9

Attributable to:

Owner of the Company 136.9
136.9

There is no other comprehensive income or expense apart from that disclosed above and
consequently a statement of comprehensive income has not been prepared.



JOHN LAING INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Group Balance Sheet
as at 31 December 2015

Non-current assets
Investments at fair value through profit or loss

Current assets

Debtors - due within one year

Debtors - due after more than one year
Other financial assets

Cash at bank and in hand

Total assets

Current liabilities

Creditors - amounts falling due within one year
Current tax liabilities

Short-term borrowings

Net current liabilities
Deferred tax liability
Total liabilities

Net assets

Equity

Share capital
Revaluation reserve
Accumulated profits

Equity attributable to owner of the Company

Total equity

2015

$ million

1,300.6

1,300.6

19.0
24.2
170.9
0.4
214.5

1,515.0

(322.6)
(2.4)

(325.0-)

(110.5)

(34.3)

(359.3)

1,155.8

580.6
575.2

1,155.8

1,155.8



JOHN LAING INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Group Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31 December 2015

Net cash inflow from operating activities

Investing activities

Net cash transferred from/(to) investments held at fair value through profit or loss
(Increase)/reduction in other financial assets

Proceeds from disposal of investments

Proceeds from loan repayments from project companies

Investment in/acquisition of project companies and other investments

Net cash from investing activities

Financing activities

Loans from parent undertaking

Loans to group undertakings

Proceeds from borrowings

Interest paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand at beginning of the year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash at bank and in hand at end of year

2015

$ million

87.2

(63.8)
(104.3)
108.3

(132.9)

(192.7)

159.9
(37.5)

(16.6)

105.8

0.3

0.2

(0.1)

0.4




JOHN LAING INVESTMENTS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT
AND

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2015

Registered number: 780225



JOHN LAING INVESTMENTS LIMITED
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JOHN LAING INVESTMENTS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT

The Directors present their strategic report on John Laing Investments Limited (the Company or the Group) for the year ended 31 December
2015, which has been prepared in compliance with section 414c of the Companies Act 2006.

Business review

The principal activity of the Company is the undertaking of investment activities on behalf of its ultimate parent, John Laing Group plc. The
Company invesls in a portfolio of investments predominantly in the subordinaled loan stock and equity of Public Private Partnership ("PPP")
and renewable energy infrastructure project companies.

Results and performance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporling Standard 102 ("FRS 102") issued by the Financlal
Reporting Council ("FRC").

Group profit before tax was £96.5 million (2014 - £145.8 million).

At 31 December 2015, the Group had 39 projects in its investment portfolio (2014 - 40 projects), which are all measured at fair vaiue in
accordance with FRS 102. Of these 39 investments, 18 were in overseas projects (2014 - 14 overseas projects) and 21 were in UK projects
(2014 - 26 UK projects).

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company invested in seven new projects either directly into project companies or indirectly
through intermediary holding companies. New investments were made directly or indirectly in the following project companies: ALTRAC Light
Rail Partnership, I-77 Mobility Partners LLC, Glencarbry (Holdings) Limited, Klettwitz SN Verwaltungs GmbH, Société d'Explaitation du Parc
Eolien Du Tonnerois, Cramlington Renewable Energy Developments Limited and HWF 1 Pty Ltd.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group disposed of shares and subordinated debt in seven PPP and renewable energy project
companies. Sales proceeds were £86.3 million.

The Company sold to JLEN its entire interest in Carscreugh Holdings Limited, Wear Point Wind Holdco Limited, Branden Solar Park Holdings
Limited and Burlon Wold Extension Limited. The Group sold its entire interest in Healthcare Support (Erdington) Holdings Limited to JLIF in
June 2015. The Group also sold its entire holding in Dhule Palesner Toliway Limited and Services Support (Cleveland) Holdings Limited in the
last quarter of 2015 to other parlies.

The Company also transferred 47,840,000 of its 63,496,731 shares in John Laing Environmental Assets Group Limiled and 705,000 of its
780,000 shares in City Greenwich Lewisham Rail Link plc to John Laing Limited, its immediate parent undertaking, at fair value.

At 31 December 2015, the Group had no borrowings (2014 - £nil). At 31 December 2015, the Group had £154.2 million (2014 - £243.8 million)
of letters of credit issued in relation to future investment commitments. The Company also had £1.1 million (2014 - £1.1 million) of
performance bonds issued. These letters of credit and performance bonds have been issued under the John Laing Group plc corporate
banking facility, in which the Company is a borrower.

Strategy
The Company invests principally in PPP assets and renewable energy assets, with a particular focus on onshore wind farms, solar PV parks
and biomass plants.



JOHN LAING INVESTMENTS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

Key Performance Indicators ("KPIs")
The Board monitors the progress of the Group by reference to the following KPls:

- Profit before tax

Profit before tax for the year ended 31 December 2015 was £96.5 million compared to £145.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2014,
The main reason for a lower profit before tax was a lower fair value movement in 2015 compared to 2014. This is principally because
investment commitments and value enhancements do not necessarily arise evenly from one year to another.

- Net asset value ("NAV"}
At 31 December 2015, the Company's NAV was £775.9 million compared to £686.9 million at 31 December 2014.

Further information on the performance of the John Laing group is available in the 2015 John Laing Group plc Annual Report and Accounts
which are publicly available from www.laing.com.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The main risks faced by the Group are liquidity, credit and price risk. The Group’s exposure to liquidity risk is mitigaled by the financial support
given by John Laing Limited, its immediate parent company. Both the Company and John Laing Limited are co-borrowers in the John Laing
Group plc corporate banking facility. A significant majority of the project companies in which the Group invests receive revenue from
government departments, public sector or local authority clients and/or directly from the public. As a result, these projects tend not to be
exposed to significant credit risk; the Group works with multiple clients, joint venture partners, sub-contractors and institutional investors so as
to reduce the probability of systemic counter-party risk in its investment portfolio. The Group's investments in PPP assets have limited direct
exposure to price risk. The fair value of many such project companies is dependent on the recelpt of fixed fee income from government
depariments, public sector or local authority clients. As a result, these projects tend not to be exposed to price risk. The Group also holds
investments in renewable energy projects whose fair value may vary with forward energy prices to the extent they are not hedged through
short to medium term fixed price purchase agreements with electricity suppliers, or do not benefit from governmental support mechanisms at
fixed prices. The Group's investment in JLEN is valued at its closing market share price.

A detailed analysis of the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the John Laing group is disclosed in the 2015 Annual Report and Accounts
of John Laing Group plc.

Future developments .
The Company will continue to seek to benefit from Income from the Investments In its portfolio as well as to capitalise on new investment
opportunities for PPP and renewable energy infrastructure.

The Group is pursuing a number of PPP and renewable energy opportunities in North America, Asia Pacific and Europe.

By order of the Board

e o
B J T Pleterse

Director
26 May 2016
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JOHN LAING INVESTMENTS LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Directors submit their Annual Report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015

The Company, incorporated in Great Britain, is a wholly owned subsidiary of John Laing Limited. The ultimate parent company is John Laing Group plc whose
shares are publicly traded on the London Stock Exchange

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

In accordance with section 414 of the Companies Act 2008, further information regarding the Company's principal activity and key performance indicators is found
within the Strategic Report on pages 2 to 3.

GOING CONCERN REVIEW

The Directors have considered the use of the going concern basis in the preparation of the financial statements in light of current market conditions and have
concluded that it is appropriate. More information is provided in note 2 to the financial statements.

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO THE AUDITOR
The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors’ report confirm that, so far as they are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which

the Company's auditor is unaware, and each Director has taken all the steps that he or she ought to have taken as a Direclor o make himself or herself aware of
any relevant audit Information and fo establish that the Company's auditor is aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006
DIRECTORS

The Directors who served throughout the year and up to the date of this report, except as noted, are shown on page 1.
EMPLOYEES

Details of the number of employees and related costs can be found in note 9 to the financial statements.

AUDITOR

Pursuant to section 487 of the Companies Act 2008, the auditor will be deemed to be re-appointed and Deloitte will therefore continue in office.

On behalf of the Board

B J T Pieterse
Director
26 May 2016



JOHN LAING INVESTMENTS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the Directors have elected to
prepare the financial statements (Group and Company) in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United
Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law), including FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic
of Ireland”. Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period.

In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

- make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements; and

- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company will continue in
business.

The Direclors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's transactions
and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial
stalements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responslble for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

By order of the Board

Lﬂ:’/?—e_;

B J T Pleterse
Director
26 May 2016
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JOHN LAING INVESTMENTS LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF JOHN LAING INVESTMENTS LIMITED

We have audited the financlal stalements of John Laing Investments Limited for the year ended 31 December 2015 which comprise the Group
Profit and Loss Account, the Group Statement of Changes In Equity, the Group Balance Sheel, the Group Cash Flow Statement and the related
notes 1 to 27 of the Group financial statements and the Company Balance Sheet and related noles 1 {o 12 of the Company financlal statements.
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation s applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), Inciuding FRS 102 "The Financlal Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of
Ireland”,

This report Is made solely to the Company's member, as a body, in accordance with Chapler 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's member those matters we are required to state to them In an auditor's report
and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibiiity to anyone other than the Company
and the Company's member as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditor

As explained more fully In the Direclors' Responsibiities Statement, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financlal statements
and for being salisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility s to audit and express an opinion on the financlal statements In
accordance with applicable law and Intemationa! Standards on Auditing (UK and lreland). Those standards require us to comply with the
Audiling Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures In the financlal statements sufficlent to give reasonable assurance that
the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the Group's and the parent company’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately
disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting eslimates made by the Directors; and the overall presentation of the financial statements.
In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information In the annual report to Identify material inconsistencies with the audited
financlal statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowiedge
acquired by us In the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of eny apparent material misstatemenls or inconsislencles we
conslder the implications for our report.

Opinlon on financlal statements
In our opinion the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Parent Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2015 and of the Group's profit
for the year then ended;

- have been properly prepared In accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and
- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.
Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the Information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial stalements are
prepared Is consistent with the financial stalements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nolthing to report In respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:
- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or retums adequate for our audit have nol been received from branches
not visited by us; or
- the parent company financial statements are nol in agreement with the accounting records and retumns; or
- cerialn disclosures of Directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

—

Ross Howard

Senlor Statutory Auditor

for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Chariered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
London, United Kingdom

26 May 2016



JOHN LAING INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Group Profit and Loss Account
for the year ended 31 December 2015

Continuing operations

Interest income

Dividend income

Net gain on investments at fair value through profit or loss
Other income

Operating income

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Administrative expenses
Profit on disposal of subsidiaries

Profit from operations

Finance costs
Profit before tax

Tax (charge)/credit
Profit after tax

Attributable to:
Owner of the Company

There is no other comprehensive income or expense apart from that disclosed above and consequently a statement of

comprehensive income has not been prepared.

Notes

14

10

11

12

2015 2014
£ million £ million
25.7 24.8 ;
25.9 2.2 !
83.4 114.9
- 34.3 ;,
135.0 176.2 ‘
. (0.7)
135.0 175.5
(28.0) (57.6)
- 40.3
107.0 158.2
(10.5) (12.4)
96.5 145.8
(4.2) 1.7
92.3 147.5
92.3 147.5
92.3 147.5




JOHN LAING INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Group Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31 December 2015

Balance at 1 January 2015

Profit after tax
Reduction of share capital
Net transfer on investments revaluation

Balance at 31 December 2015

Balance at 1 January 2014

Profit after tax

Net transfer on investments revaluation
Dividends paid

Balance at 31 December 2014

Revaluation reserve

Revaluation Accumulated Total

Share capital reserve profit/(loss) equity

Notes £ million £ million £ million £ million
30.0 3301 326.8 686.9

- - 92.3 92.3

21 (30.0) - 30.0 -

- 61.3 (61.3) -

- 391.4 387.8 779.2

Revaluation Accumulated

Share capital reserve profit/(loss) Total equity
Notes £ million £ million Emilion £ million
300 266.5 282.9 579.4

- - 147.5 147.5

- 63.6 (63.6) -
13 - - (40.0) (40.0)
30.0 330.1 326.8 686.9

The revaluation reserve represents the accumulated revaluation arising on investments at fair value through profit or loss.

The net transfer on investments revaluation represents the change in the value of investments between cost and fair value.

Accumulated profit/(loss)

The accumulated profit/(loss) reserve represented the accumulated profit or loss since the incorporation of the Company.



JOHN LAING INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Group Balance Sheet
as at 31 December 2015

Non-current assets
Investments at fair value through profit or loss

Current assets
Debtors - due within one year

Debtors - due after more than one year
Current tax assets

Other financial assets
Cash at bank and in hand

Total assets

Current liabilities
Creditors - amounts falling due within one year

Current tax liabilities

Net current liabilities
Deferred tax liability
Total liabilities

Net assets

Equity

Share capital
Revaluation reserve
Accumulated profits

Equity attributable to owner of the Company

Total equity

Notes

14

15

15

16
16

17

20

21

2015 2014
£ million £ million
876.8 785.1
12.8 9.6
16.3 436
- 9.9
115.2 476
0.3 0.1
144.6 110.8
1,021.4 B95.9
(217.5) (180.9)
(1.6) (11.7)
(219.1) (192.6)
(74.5) (81.8)
(23.1) (16.4)
(242.2) (209.0)
779.2 686.9
. 30.0
391.4 330.1
387.8 326.8
~779.2 686.9
779.2 686.9

The financial statements of John Laing Investments Limited, registered number 780225, were approved by the Board of

Directors and authorised for issue on 26 May 2016. They were signed on its behalf by:

\ \):t/ .L_Q‘_)
B J T Pieterse

Director
26 May 2016



JOHN LAING INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Group Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31 December 2015

Notes

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities 22

Investing activities

Net cash transferred (to)/from investments held at fair value through profit or loss

Increase in other financial assets

Proceeds from disposal of investments

Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries 10
Proceeds from loan repayments from project companies

Investment infacquisition of project companies and other investments

Net cash (used in)/from investing activities

Financing activities

Dividends paid

Loans from parent undertakings

Loans to group undertakings

Interest paid

Net cash from/(used in) financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash at bank and in hand
Cash at bank and in hand at beginning of the year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash at bank and in hand at end of the year 16

10

2015 2014

£ million £ millien
54.0 (1.4)
(41.1) 26.5
(67.6) (39.7)
73.0 161.7
- (1.1)

- 33
(89.6) (127.2)
(125.3) 23.5
» (40.0)
107.8 28.1
(25.1) -
(11.2) (11.5)
71.5 (23.4)
0.2 (1.3)

0.1 1.0

- 04

0.3 0.1




JOHN LAING INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Notes to the Group Financial Statements

1

a)

b)

c)

d)

General information

John Laing Investments Limited (the “Company” or the "Group") is a company incorporated in the United Kingdom under
the Companies Act 2006. The address of the registered office of the Company is given in the Directors and Auditor
section on page 1. The nature of the Company's operations and its principal activities is set out in the Strategic Report on
pages 2 to 3.

These financial statements are presented in pounds sterling, the functional currency and the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates. Foreign operations are included in accordance with the policies
set out below.

Accounting policies
Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the historic cost convention, modified to include certain items at fair
value, and in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 ("FRS 102") issued by the Financial Reporting Council
("FRC"). The comparative period results have been presented on the same basis.

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below.
Going concern

The Group's principal activity is to hold investments in PPP projects that provide services under certain private finance
agreements and in other infrastructure projects (including renewable energy projects). The infrastructure projects are set
up as special purpose companies under non-recourse arrangements and therefore the Company has limited exposure to
their liabilities. In the event of default of an infrastructure project, the exposure is limited to the extent of the investment the
Group has made. Having reviewed the Group's investment portfolio including the associated future cash requirements
and forecast receipts, and the level of headroom within the John Laing Group plc corporate banking facility in which the
Group is @ co-borrower, the Directors are satisfied that they have a reasonable expectation that the Group will have
access to adequate resources to continue in existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, they continue to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

In accordance with FRS 102 section 9.9b, subsidiaries that are held as part of an investment portfolio are measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Investments in joint ventures

Investments in joint ventures are held as part of an investment portfolio and accordingly, in accordance with FRS 102
section 15.9B, are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

11



JOHN LAING INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Notes to the Group Financial Statements
2 Accounting policies (continued)

e) Operating income

The Group earns operating income from returns on its investment portfolio.
Operating income is recognised by reference to the following policies:

() Investment income

Interest income

Interest income is recognised when it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of income
can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued by reference to the principal outstanding and the applicable interest
rate.

Dividend income

Dividend income from investments in project companies and other investments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
is recognised when the shareholders' rights to receive payment have been established (provided that it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably). Dividend income is
recognised gross of withholding tax, if any, and only when approved and paid by the project company.

Net gain on investments at FVTPL
Net gain on investments at FVTPL excludes interest and dividend income referred to above.

f) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Group Balance Sheet when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

Basic financial instruments, which primarily relate to amounts owed to and from parent undertakings, interest bearing bank
loans and borrowings, trade debtors and trade payables are held at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they
expire. The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
Financial assets are assessed for indications of impairment at each balance sheet date.

12



JOHN LAING INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Notes to the Group Financial Statements

2

g

h)

i

i)

k)

Accounting policies (continued)

Finance costs

Finance costs relating to the corporate banking facility, other than set-up costs, are recognised in the year in which they are
Incurred.

Taxation

The tax charge or credit represents the sum of tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

Current tax payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the Group
Profit and Loss Account because it excludes both items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted, or substantively enacted, by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising from investments in project companies,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. The measurement of deferred tax liabilites on project companies
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the Group Profit
and Loss Account except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is
also dealt with in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to
settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Foreign currencies
Exchange differences arising in the ordinary course of trading are reflected in the Group Profit and Loss Account.

Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the period. Monetary assets and liabilities
expressed in foreign currency are reported at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date or, if appropriate, at
the forward contract rate. Any difference arising on the retranslation of these amounts is taken to the Group Profit and Loss
Account.

Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand comprises cash at bank and in hand and short term deposits with original maturities of three
months or less.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity instruments on the basis that they evidence a residual interest in the assets of the
Group after deducting all its liabilities.

13




JOHN LAING INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Notes to the Group Financial Statements

3 Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty
In the application of the Group's accounting policies, the Directors are required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates made and the underlying assumptions on which they are based are reviewed regularly. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or
in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

ir value of investments in proje ies
The Group measures at fair value those subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates that form part of an investment portfolio.
These investments comprise investments in project companies (being both PPP and renewable energy project companies)
and an investment in the John Laing Environmental Assets Group. The Group's policy is to fair value both the equity and
subordinated debt investments in project companies together. Subsequent to initial recognition, the investments are
measured on a combined basis at fair value using discounted cash flow methodology, with changes recognised within
operating income In the Group Profit and Loss Account.

A valuation of the Group's investment portfolio is prepared on a consistent, principally discounted cash flow basis at 30
June and 31 December. The valuation is carried out on a fair value basis assuming that forecast cash flows are received
until maturity of the underlying assets.

A base case discount rate for an operational project is derived from secondary market information and other available data
points. The base case discount rate is then adjusted to reflect project-specific risks. In addition, risk premia are added
during the construction phase to reflect the additional risk during construction. These premia reduce over time as the
project progresses through its construction programme, reflecting the significant reduction in risk once the project reaches
the operating stage.

The cash flows on which the discounted cash flow valuation is based are those forecast to be distributable to the Company

at each balance sheet date, derived from detailed financial models. These incorporate assumptions reflecting the Group's
expectations of likely future cash flows including value enhancements.

14



JOHN LAING INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Notes to the Group Financial Statements

4 Interestincome

2015 2014
£ million £ million
Interest on cash balances 1.5 0.5
Interest from investments 194 19.9
Interest earned on loans to fellow group undertakings 1.9 -
Recoveries of letter of credit fees 2.9 4.4
25.7 24.8
5 Dividend income
2015 2014
£ million £ million
Dividends from investments ' 25.9 2.2
25.9 2.2
6 Other income
2015 2014
£ million £ million
Other asset management services income - 34.3
- 34.3
7 Operating income
2015 2014
Geographical analysis £ million £ million
UK 89.1 126.4
Continental Europe 8.1 Y2
North America 18.3 17.7
Asia Pacific 19.5 14.9
135.0 176.2

156



JOHN LAING INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Notes to the Group Financial Statements

8 Profit from operations

2015 2014
Profit from operations has been arrived at after (charging)/crediting: £ million £ million
Payments under operating leases:
- rental of land and buildings - (3.0)
Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain (4.8) 23
Depreciation of plant and equipment - (1.0)
Amortisation of intangible assets - (0.5)

The fees payable to the Company's auditor and its associates for the audit of the Company's annual accounts
were £11,027 for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: £10,918).

The fees payable to the Company's auditor and its associates for the audit of the Company's subsidiaries were
£109,723 for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: £200,038).

9 Employees and directors’ remuneration

2015 2014
£ million £ million
Employee costs comprise:; 1
Salaries - (21.6)
Social security costs - (2.8)
Pension charge
- defined contribution - (1.2)
- (25.8)
Annual average employee numbers (including Directors):
2015 2014
No. No.
Staff - 228
UK - 194
Overseas - 34
Activity
Bidding activities, asset management and Group - 228
Facilities management - -
- 228

The Group had no employees as at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014 as a result of the transfer of the
LIMS entities (refer to note 10) to John Laing Limited in December 2014.

The directors are considered to also be the key management personnel of the company.

The remuneration of all Directors of the Company, except D Potts, C B Waples, C T Cattermole and BJ T
Pieterse, is disclosed in the John Laing Group plc 2015 Annual Report and Accounts, which are publicly
available. The services of D Potts, C B Waples, C T Cattermole and B J T Pieterse attributable to the Group
cannot be distinguished from those provided to the John Laing Group as a whole. Therefore, no separate
disclosure of their remuneration has been made

16



JOHN LAING INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Notes to the Group Financial Statements

10 Profit on disposal of subsidiaries

2015 2014

£ million £ million
Profit on disposal of subsidiaries - 40.3
- 40.3

There were no disposals of subsidiaries in the year ended 31 December 2015.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group transferred its entire shareholding in Laing Investment Management
Services Limited, Laing Investment Management Services (Canada) Limited, Laing Investment Management Services
(New Zealand) Limited, Laing Investment Management Services (Netherlands) Limited, John Laing (USA) Limited, Laing
Investment Management Services (Australia) Limited, Laing Investment Management Services (Singapore) Limited
(collectively the LIMS entities) to John Laing Limited (fermerly John Laing plc) as part of the reorganisation of the John
Laing Group plc prior to admission to listing on the London Stock Exchange in February 2015. The Company's
shareholding in JLIF (GP) Limited was sold separately. The total consideration for these transfers and disposals was £0.1
million, satisfied by cash of £0.1 million for JLIF (GP) Limited and an intercompany loan of £7 for the LIMS entities.
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10 Profit on disposal of subsidiaries (continued)

11

The net assets at the date of disposal were:

2015 2014
LIMS entities
and JLIF (GP)
Limited
£ million £ million
Plant and equipment - 1.9
Deferred tax asset - 15
Inventories - work in progress - -
Debtors - due within one year - 79.8
Tax recoverable - 0.6
Cash at bank and in hand - 1.2
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings = #
Creditors - amounts falling due within one year - (57.5)
Other creditors - (64.4)
Current tax liabilities - {1:3)
Provisions - (2.0)
Net liabilities disposed of - (40.2)
Consideration - 0.1
Gain on disposals - 40.3
Reconciliation to net cash inflow:
Consideration - 0.1
less: cash and other financial assets in subsidiaries disposed of - (1.2)
Net cash inflow arising on disposals - (1.1)
Finance costs
2015 2014
£ million £ million
Finance costs (5.4) (8.8)
Interest payable on amounts owed to parent undertakings (5.1) (3.6)
(10.5) (12.4)
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12

13

Tax

The tax credit for the year comprises:

2015 2014
£ million £ million
Current tax:
UK corporation tax credit - current period - -
UK corporation tax credit - prior period 25 -
Foreign tax credit - 0.1
2.5 0.1
Deferred tax (charge)/credit (6.7) 1.6
Tax (charge)/credit on continuing operations (4.2) 17

The tax (charge)/credit for the year can be reconciled to the profit in the Group Profit and Loss Account as follows:

2015 2014
£ million £ million
Profit before tax on continuing operations 96.5 145.8
Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 20.25% (2014 - 21.5%) (19.5) (31.3)
Tax effect of dividend income not taxable 5.2 0.5
Tax effect of profits on disposal that are not taxable - 8.4
Tax effect of expenses and other similar items that are not deductible 0.9 (0.6)
Foreign tax - 0.1
Non-taxable movement on fair value of investments 8.4 24.7
Effect of changes in tax rates . 1.5 -
Prior year adjustment 25 -
Other movements on disposal of investments (3.3) -
Other movements 0.1 (0.1)
Total tax (charge)/credit on continuing operations for the year (4.2) 17

For the year ended 31 December 2015 a blended tax rate of 20.25% has been applied due to the change in the UK corporation
tax rate from 21% to 20% with effect from 1 April 2015 (2014 — 21.5%). The UK corporation tax rate will reduce by 1% to 19%
from 1 April 2017 and a further 1% to 18% from 1 April 2020. The UK Government has announced its intention to reduce the main
corporation tax rate by a further 1% to 17% from 1 April 2020 but this reduction has not been substantively enacted.

The Group expects that the majority of deferred tax assets will be realised and the majority of deferred tax liabilities will be settied
after 1 April 2020 and therefore the Group has measured its deferred tax assets and liabilities at 31 December 2015 at 18% (31
December 2014 - 20%).

Dividends
2015 2014
£ million £ million
Equity shares:
- Enil dividends paid (2014 - £1.33) per ordinary share - 40.0
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14 Investments at fair value through profit or loss

2015 2014
Listed Project Listed
Project pani I its Total companies  invesiments Total
£ million £ miliion £ milllon £ million £ miliion £ million
At 1 January 706.7 65.6 7723 645.1 39.7 684.8
Distributions (43.4) (0.9) (44.3) {26.0) (1.9) (27.9)
Investment n equity and loans 142.9 - 142.8 91.7 83.5 155.2
Realisations (86.3) - (86.3) (159.6) (38.9) (198.5)
Investments transferred to JLPF {29.8) (50.4) {80.0) - - -
Fair value movement 135.5 1.8 137.3 155.5 3.2 158.7
At 31 December 825.8 16.1 841.9 706.7 65.6 772.3
Fair value of intermediate holding companles 34.9 128
Investments at fair value through profit or loss 876.8 7685.1

The fair value of inlermediate holding companies includes deblors, cash al bank and in hand and creditors held in intermediate holding companies which have direct
Iinvestments In project companies included above.

The movement between the closing falr value of intermediate holding companies at 31 December 2014 of £12.8 million and 31 December 2015 of £34.9 million Includes a
net loss of £6.1 million (2014 — net loss of £21.7 million). Afer 1aking account of the fair value movement from investments in project companies and listed investments
abave of £137.3 million {2014 - £158.7 miflion), the tolal fair value movement is £131.2 million (2014 - £137.0 million). This Is represented on the Group Profit and Loss
Account as: net galn on investments a fair value through profit or loss of £83.4 million (2014 - E114.9 million), dividend income of £25.9 million (2014 - £2.2 milfion) and
£19.4 million (2014 - £19.9 milion) within interest income.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group disposed of shares and subordinated debt In seven project companies. Sale proceeds were £86.3 million In cash.
The fair value of assets disposed of was £86.3 million with movements in falr value to the date of disposal included within nel gains on investments at FVTPL in the Group
Profit and Loss Account. The Group also made a contribution of £80.0 milflon to the John Laing Penslon Fund settled by a ransfer of shares In JLEN and shares In one
PPP project company.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group disposed of shares and subordinated debt in twelve project companies. Sale proceeds were £139.5 million in cash,
The falr value of assets disposed of was £139.5 million with movements In fair value to the date of disposal included within net gains on Investments al FVTPL in the
Group Profit and Loss Account. The Group also disposed of its remaining holding In John Laing Infrastructure Fund Limiled (JLIF) on 31 March 2014 for £38.9 million, net
of costs of £0.4 milion.

Date of Original i g . Retained
pletion holdi disposed of holding
Company % % %
Details of investments in project companies sold in the year
ended 31 December 2015 were as follows:
Sold i ental Assets Gro Imited
Carscreugh Holdings Ltd 31 Mar 15 100.0 100.0 -
Wear Point Wind Holdco Lid 31 Mar 15 100.0 1000 -
Branden Solar Park Holdings Ltd 31 Mar 15 100.0 54.0 46.0
Branden Solar Park Holdings Ltd 30 Jul 15 36.0 36.0 -
BL Wind Holdings 2Dec 15 100.0 1000 -
Sold to John Laing Infrastructure Limited
Healhcare Support (Erdington) Holdings Limited 30 Jun 15 100.0 100.0 -
Sold to other parties
Dhite Palesner Tollway Ltd 30 Sep 15 36.0 100.0 -
Services Support (Cleveland) Holdings Limited 5Nov 15 100.0 100.0 -
Tran! d {0 J
City Greerwich Lewisham Rall Link plc 17 Feb 15 52,0 47.0 50
John Laing Environmenlal Assels Group Limited (JLEN) 17 Feb 15 397 299 9.8*

* shareholding reduced to 7.0% following the equity issue by JLEN in July 2015.
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15 Trade and other debtors

16

17

31 December 31 December

2015 2014
£ million £ million
Due within one year

Trade and other debtors 1.0 1.3
Amounts due from fellow group undertakings 11.0 7.6
Amounts due from project companies 0.8 0.7
12.8 9.6

Due after more than one year
Amounts due from fellow group undertakings 16.3 43.6

Included within amounts due from fellow group undertakings are loans to fellow group undertakings. These loans are payable on demand.
The amount shown as due after more than one year reflecls an agreement stating that this amount will not be recalied within 12 months of
the balance sheet date. Inlerest is charged on these loans at 3.5% above base from January 2015 to February 2015 and 2.75% above base
rate from March 2015 to December 2015 (2014 - 3.5% above base rate from January 2014 to March 2014, 3.0% above base rate from April
2014 to September 2014 and 3.5% above base rate from October 2014 to December 2014).

In the opinion of the Directors the fair value of trade and other debtors is equal to the carrying value.

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and other debtors are denominated in the following currencies:
31 December 31 December

2015 2014
£ million £ million
Sterling 259 51.2
US dollar 1.3 0.4
Australian dollar 0.3 0.6
New Zealand dollar - 0.1
Euro 1.6 0.9
29.1 53.2

Included in the Group's trade debtors are debtors with a carrying value of £nil (31 December 2014 - £nil) which were overdue at the reporting
date.

Cash at bank and in hand and other financial assets
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
£ million £ million
Current
Cash at bank and in hand 0.3 0.1
Other financial assets 115.2 47.6
115.5 47.7

Other financial assets comprise restricted cash held in deposit accounts with original maturities of more than three menths and/or which the
Group cannot readily access.

Other financial assets at 31 December 2014 included cash collateral of £39.7 million on the East West Link project. In the first half of 2015,
the State of Victoria in Australia cancelled the project. Following agreement with the Victoria Government, the Group was able to recover the
cash collateral of £39.7 million and the letter of credit of £21.0 million (Sterling equivalent at 31 December 2014).

Trade and other creditors
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
£ million £ million

Due within one year

Amounts due to parent undertakings (175.6) (113.2)
Amounts due to fellow group undertakings (40.9) (64.8)
Other creditors (1.0) (2.9)
(217.5) (180.9)

Amounts due to parent undertakings and amounts due to fellow group undertakings are payable on demand. Interest is charged on the loans
al 3.5% above base from January 2015 to February 2015 and 2.75% above base rate from March 2015 to December 2015 (2014 - 3.5%
above base rate from January 2014 to March 2014, 3.0% above base rate from April 2014 to September 2014 and 3.5% above base rate
from October 2014 to December 2014).
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18 Financial instruments
a) Financial instruments by category

Assets at Financial
fair value liabilities at
Loans and through amortised
receivables profit or loss cost Total
Continuing operations £ million £ million £ million £ million
31 December 2015
Non-current assets
Investments at fair value through profit or loss* - 876.8 - 876.8
Current assets
Debtors - due within one year 128 - - 12.8
Debtors - due after more than one year 16.3 - - 16.3
Other financial assets 115.2 - - 115.2
Cash at bank and in hand 0.3 - “ 0.3
Total financial assets 1446 876.8 - 1,021.4
Current liabilities
Creditors - amounts falling due within one year - - (217.5) (217.5)
Total financial liabilities - - (217.5 (217.5)
Net financial instruments 144.6 876.8 (217.5) 803.9
Financial
Assets at fair liabilities at
Loans and value through amortised
receivables  profit or loss cost Total
Continuing operations £ million £ million £ million £ million
31 December 2014
Non-current assets
Investments at fair value through profit or loss* - 785.1 - 785.1
Current assets
Debtors - due within one year 9.6 - - 9.6
Debtors - due after more than one year 436 436
Other financial assets 47.6 - - 476
Cash at bank and in hand 0.1 - - 0.1
Total financial assets 100.9 785.1 - 886.0
Current liabilities
Creditors ~ amounts falling due within one year - - (180.9) (180.9)
Total financial liabilities - - (180.9) (180.9)
Net financial instruments 100.9 785.1 (180.9) 705.1

* Investments at fair value through profit or loss are split between a listed investment in JLEN fair valued at £16.1
million (31 December 2014: JLEN - £65.6 million) using quoted market prices and investments in project
companies fair valued at £825.8 million (31 December 2014 - £706.7 million). The investments at FVTPL include
assets and liabilities in intermediate holding companies as shown in note 14. Such assets and liabilities are
recorded at amortised cost which the Directors believe approximates to their fair value.
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18 Financlal Instruments (continued)

The camrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities in these financial statements reflect their fair values.

b) Foreign currency and Interest rate profile of financlal assets other than Investments at FVTPL

Continuing operations
31 December 2015

Continuing operations
31 December 2014

Financlal assets Financial assets
Floating Non-interest Floating Non-interest
rate bearing Total _rale bearing Total
Currency £ million £ milllon £ million £ million £ million £ million
Sterling 86.1 0.2 86.3 §7.9 0.1 58.0
Euro 0.3 0.3 0.6 0.9 0.9 18
US dollar 16.7 - 16.7 0.4 - 04
Australian dollar 40.4 0.5 409 40.3 0.3 40.6
Other 0.1 - 0.1 0.1 - 0.1
143.6 1.0 144.6 99.6 1.3 1009

c) Forelgn currency and Interest rate profile of financial liabllities

The Group's financial liabilities at 31 December 2015 were £217.5 million (31 December 2014 - £180.8 million), of which Enil (31 December

2014 - £nil) related to shori-term cash borrowings.
Continuing operations
31 December 2015
Financial liabilities

Continuing operations
31 December 2014
Financial liabilities

Floating Non-interest Floating Non-interest

rate bearing Total rate bearing Total

Currency £ million £ million £ million £ million £ million E million
Sterling (215.5) (1.0) (216.5) (176.2) (2.9) (179.1)
Euro (0.3) - (0.3) (0.3) - (0.3)
US dollar (0.2) - (0.2) (0.3} - (0.3)
Australian dollar (0.4) - (0.4) (0.6) - (0.8)
New Zealand dollar (0.15] - (0.1 (0.6) - (0.6)
(216.5) (1.0) (217.5 (178.0) (2.9) (180.9)
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19 Financlal risk management
The Group's activilies expose il to a variety of financial risks: markel risk (including foreign exchange rale risk, interest rate risk, inflalion risk), credit risk, price risk, liquidity risk, and
capital risk. The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markels and seeks to minimise potential adverse efiects on the Group's
financial performance,

For the parent company and Ils recourse subsidiaries, financial risks are managed by a central treasury operation which operates within Board approved policies. The various
types of financlal risk are managed as follows:

Market risk - foreign curency exchange rate risk

As al 31 December 2015 the Group held investmenls in 18 overseas projects (31 December 2014 - 14 overseas Investmenis). The Group's forelgn cumency exchange rate risk
policy Is not to hedge on an individual project basis but lo determine and manage lhe lota) Group exposure to individual currencies. The Group's exposure 1o exchange rate risk on
Its investments |s disclosed below.

In addition, the Group policy on managing forelgn currency exchange rate risk is to cover significant transactional exposures arising from receipts and payments in foreign
currencies, where appropriale and cost effective.

Al 31 December 2015, the Group's most significant currency exposure was to the Euro (31 December 2014 - Euro).
ruiegn wnisvy
exposure of investments

2015 2014
Project Listed Other assets Project Listed Other assets

companles Investment and liabilitles Total compani In is and liabiiities Total

£ million £ million £ million £ million £ milion £ million £ mifiion E milion

Sterling 4219 16.1 349 4729 446.4 656 12.8 5248

Euro 2133 - - 2133 143.1 - - 1431

Australian doliar 88.2 - - 86.2 4B.5 - - 46.5

US dollar 837 - - 83.7 49,8 - - 498

New Zealand dollar 187 . . 18.7 18.9 - - 189
8258 16.1 34.9 B76.8 706.7 65.6 128 7851

— — —

Investments in project companies are falr valued based on the spol rale al the balance sheel date. As at 31 December 2015, a 10% weakening of the relevant currency against
Sterling would decrease the value of investments at fair value through profit or loss by £36.7 million, A 10% slrengthening of the relevant currency against Sterling would increase

the value by £40.4 milion.
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19 Financial risk management (continued)

Market rigk - interest rate risk
The Group's interest rate risk arises due to fluctuations in interest rates which impact on the value of returns from floating rate deposits and expose the

Group to variability in interest payment cash flows on variable rate borrowings.
The exposure of the Group's financial assets to interest rate risk is as follows:

31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Interest bearing Interest bearing
Floating  Non-interest Floating Non-interest
rate bearing Total rate bearing Total
£ million £ million £ million £ million £ million £ million
Financlal assets
Investments at fair value through profit or loss - 876.8 B76.8 - 785.1 785.1
Debtors 281 1.0 29.1 51.8 1.3 53.2
Other financial assets 115.2 - 115.2 47.6 - 476
Cash and cash equivalents 0.3 - 0.3 0.1 - 0.1
Financial asset exposure to interest rate risk 143.6 877.8 1,021.4 89.6 786.4 B86.0

The exposure of the Group's financial liabilities to interest rate risk is as follows:

31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Interest bearing Interest bearing
Floating Non-interest Floating Non-interest
rate bearing Total rate bearing Total
£ million £ million £ million £ million £ million £ million
Creditors - amounts falling due within one year (216.5) (1.0) (217.5) (178.0) (2.9) (180.9)
Financial liability exposure to interest rate risk (216.5) (1.0) (217.5) (178.0) (2.9) (180.9)
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19 Financial risk management (continued)

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on a 1% increase in interest rates prevailing at the relevant period end and
a decrease of 1% to a minimum of 0% interest rate. For all floating rate assets and liabilities, the analysis has been prepared
assuming balances have been outstanding for the whole period though, in practice, such balances are subject to fluctuations due to
regular settlement and replacement.

2015 2014
Profit before tax £ million £ million
Increase by 1% 0.8 0.3
Decrease by 1% (to a minimum of 0% interest rate) (0.8) (0.3)

Market risk - inflation risk

The Group has limited direct exposure to inflation risk, but the fair value of investments is determined by future revenue and costs
which are linked to inflation. This results in the fair value of investments being sensitive to inflation which is often mitigated by the
project company entering into inflation swaps.

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a Group basis. Credit risk arises from a combination of the value and term to settiement of balances due
and payable with counterparties for both financial and trade transactions.

In order to minimise credit risk, cash investments and derivative transactions are limited to financial institutions of a suitable credit
quality and counterparties are carefully screened. The Group's cash balances are invested in line with a policy approved by the Board,
capped with regard to counter-party credit ratings.

A significant majority of the project companies in which the Group invests receive revenue from government departments, public
sector or local authority clients and/or directly from the public for example, via the collection of tolls. As a result, these projects tend
not to be exposed to significant credit risk.

Price risk

The Group has limited direct exposure to price risk, with the exception of the investment in JLEN which is valued at the closing market
share price. The fair value of many project companies in which the Group invests is dependent on the receipt of fixed fee income from
government departments, public sector or local authority clients. As a result, these projects tend not to be exposed to price risk. The
Group holds investments in renewable energy projects whose fair value may vary according to forward energy prices.

Liguidity risk
The Group adopts a prudent approach to liquidity management by maintaining sufficient cash and available committed facilities to
meet its current and upcoming obligations.

The Group's liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows in major currencies and assessing the level of liquid assets
necessary to meet these. Managing liquidity risk is helped by the predictability in both value and timing of cash flows to and from
project companies in which the Group invests.

Maturity of financial assets
The maturity profile of the Group's financial assets (excluding investments at FVTPL) is as follows:
Continuing operations
31 December 2015

Continuing operations
31 December 2014

Greater Greater
Less than than Less than than
one year  one year Total one year one year Total
£ million £ million £ million £ million £ million £ million
Debtors 12.8 16.3 291 96 43.6 53.2
Other financial assets 115.2 - 115.2 47.6 - 476
Cash at bank and in hand 0.3 - 0.3 01 - 0.1
Financial assets (excluding
investments at FVTPL) 128.3 16.3 144.6 57.3 43.6 100.9

As detailed in note 15, none of the financial assets is either overdue or impaired.
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The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities is as follows:

31 December 31 December

2015 2014
£ million £ million
In one year or less, or on demand (217.5) (180.9)

In more than one year but less than two years . "
In more than two years but less than five years - "
In more than five years

Total (217.5) (160.9)

The following table details the remaining contractual maturity of the Group's financial liabiiities. The table reflects undiscounted cash flows relating to financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group is required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows:

Welghted In more than  In more than
average one year but two years
effective Inone year less thantwo but lessthan In more than
Interest rate or less years five years five years Total
% £ million £ mililion E million £ million £ million
31 December 2015
Interest bearing instruments 29 (216.5) - - - (216.5)
Non-Interest bearing Instruments nla (1.0) - - - (1.0)
(217.5) - - - (217.5)
31 December 2014
Interest bearing instruments a8 (178.0) - - - (178.0)
Non-interest bearing instruments nfa (2.8) - - - (2.9)
(180.9) : - - (180.9)
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19 Financial risk management (continued)

Capital risk

The Group seeks to adopt efficient financing structures that enable it to manage capital effectively to achieve the Group's objectives
without putting shareholder value at risk. The Group's capital structure comprises its equity (as set out in the Group Statement of
Changes in Equity) and its net borrowings.

The Company has requirements for both borrowings and letters of credit, which at 31 December 2015 were met by the John Laing
Group plc's £350.0 million committed revolving credit facility (31 December 2014 - £353.9 million) in which the Company is a borrower.
The committed facilities are summarised below:

2015
Letters of
Total Loans credit Total
facility drawn in issue undrawn
£ million £ million £ million £ million
Committed corporate banking facility (with letter of credit option) 350.0 19.0 155.3 175.7
Total committed Group facilities (recourse) 350.0 19.0 155.3 175.7
2014
Letters of
Total Loans credit Total
facility drawn in issue undrawn
£ million £ million £ million £ million
Committed corporate banking facility (with letter of credit option) 353.9 - 244.9 108.0
Total committed Group facilities (recourse) 353.9 - 2449 109.0

The loans drawn of £19.0 million (31 December 2014 - £nil) were drawn by the Company's parent undertaking, John Laing Limited, a
fellow borrower under the facility.

Of the letters of credit drawn, £154.2 million (31 December 2014 - £243.8 million) relate to future capital and loan commitments and
£1.1 million (31 December 2014 - £1.1 million) relates to performance and bid bonds.
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The following are the major deferred tax assets and liabilities and movements therein recognised by the Company in the year ended
31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014:

Other deductible

Deferred tax temporary

on the fair differences and

value of tax losses
investments recognised Total
£ million £ million £ million
Opening (liability)/asset at 1 January 2015 (21.9) 55 (16.4)
(Charge)/credit to income - current period (6.2) (0.5) (6.7)
Closing (liability)/asset at 31 December 2015 (28.1) 5.0 (23.1)
Opening (liability)/asset at 1 January 2014 (21.8) 3.8 (18.0)
Charge to income - current year (0.1) 1.7 1.6
Closing (liability)/asset at 31 December 2014 (21.9) 5.5 (16.4)

Netting of deferred tax balances
31 December 31 December

2015 2014
£ million £ million
Deferred tax assets 5.0 55
Deferred tax liabilities (28.1) (21.9)
Net deferred tax on continuing operations as disclosed in
the Group Balance Sheet (23.1) (16.4)

A deferred tax liability has been recognised on £155.7 million (31 December 2014 - £109.0 million) relating to future interest
receivable from investments held at fair value. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of temporary timing differences
and tax losses.

Share capital
31 December
2015 31 December 2014

£ million £ million
Allotted, called up and fully paid:
10,000 ordinary shares of £1.00 each (31 December 2014 - 30,000,000 ordinary shares of
£1.00 each) - 30.0

The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no right to fixed income.

On 13 April 2015, the Company made a bonus issue to John Laing Limited of 28,354,759 new ordinary shares of £1 each through the
capitalisation of £28,354,759 standing to the credit of the Company's profit and loss reserve. The Company subsequently undertook a
reduction of capital by way of solvency statement by cancelling all but 10,000 of its 58,354,759 ordinary shares, with the reserve
arising from the reduction of capital treated as a realised profit. This led to the Company having in issue 10,000 ordinary shares of
£1.00 each at 31 December 2015.
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22 Net cash outflow from operating activities
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2015 2014
£ million £ million
Profit before tax 96.5 145.8
Adjustments for:
Finance costs 10.5 124
Unrealised profit arising on changes in fair value of investments in project companies (note 14) (83.4) (114.9)
Profit on disposal of subsidiaries (note 10) - (40.3)
Depreciation of plant and equipment - 1.0
Amortisation of intangible assets - 0.5
Increase in provisions - 1.8
Operating cash inflow before movements in working capital : 23.6 6.3
Decrease in debtors 3.6 13.2
Increase/(decrease) in creditors 26.4 (21.2)
Cash inflow/(outflow) from operations 53.6 (1.7)
Income taxes received 0.4 0.3
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities 54.0 (1.4)

Guarantees, contingent assets and liabilities and other commitments

At 31 December 2015, the John Laing Group plc committed banking facility, dated 17 February 2015, amounted to £350.0 million (31
December 2014 - £353.9 million). The Company continues to be a guarantor of the Group facility. At 31 December 2015, the total amount
utilised was E155.3 million (31 December 2014 - £244.9 million).

At 31 December 2015, the Group had future equity and loan commitments of £278.1 million (31 December 2014 - £304.3 million) to PPP
projects that are backed by letters of credit of £154.2 million (31 December 2014 - E243.8 million) and collateralised cash of £123.9
million (31 December 2014 - £60.5 million).

The Group has given guarantees to lenders of a normal trading nature, including performance bonds, some of which may be payable on
demand.

Claims arise in the normal course of frading which in some cases involve or may involve litigation. Full provision has been made in these
accounts for all amounts which the Directors consider will become payable on account of such claims.

There were no outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases at 31 December
2015 and 31 December 2014 as the Company disposed of ils enlire interest in the LIMS entities, which held the operating lease
contracts, in December 2014, Refer to note 14 for further details on Invesiments disposed of during the years presented in these financial
statements.
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Transactions with related parties

Group

Details of fransactions between the Group and other relaled parties are disclosed below.

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption under FRS 102 section 33.1A not to disclose transactions
entered into with subsidiary undertakings of the John Laing Group.

Trading transactions

The Group entered into the following trading transactions with project companies:

2015 2014

£ million £ milion
Services income * - 16.4
Finance income from project companies 22,2 243
Dividend income from project companies 23 0.3
Amounts owed by project companies 31.8 43.2
Amounts owed to project companies (0.8) 0.7)
Amounts owed by fellow group undertakings 14.4 76
Amounts owed to parent undertakings (included in trade creditors) (1.0) (51.3)
Amounts owed to parent undertakings (188.4) (126.0)

* services income in service companies is generated from project companies through management services
agreements and recoveries of bid costs on financial close.

Loans to and from related parties

2015 2014

£ million £ million

Subordinated debt loans to project companies 294.3 256.7
Loans from project companies (4.7) (3.9)

The above loans are provided by and to the Group at market rates of interest and are repayable in accordance
with the terms of the loan agreements.

Events after balance sheet date

In February 2016, the Company disposed of its shares in British Transport Police (54.17% holding) and agreed to
dispose of its shares and subordinated debt in another project, Oldham Housing (95% holding), respectively, for
total net proceeds of £19.5 million.
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JOHN LAING INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Notes to the Group Financial Stalements

26 Discl - service fon an ents

The Group has Investments In project companies which are disclosed within investments at FVTPL (see nole 14) A number of these project companies operate service concession
arangements in the Social Infrastructure, Transpor, and Environmental sectors, The concessions vary as lo the extenl of their obligations but typically require the construction and
operation of an asset during the concesslon period. The concesslons may require the acquisition or replacement of an existing asset or the construction of a new asset, The operation of
the assets may Include the provision of major maintenance and faciities management services. Typically at the end of concession periods the assels are retumed to the concesslon
owner; however, on two of the investments held at 31 December 2015 the project company has a right to retain the concession assel.

The rights of the concession owner and concesslon operator are stated within the project agreements. The rights of the concession owner include provisions to terminate the concession
for poor performance of the contract by the operator or in the event of force majeure. The rights of the operator to terminate include the fallure of the provider to make payment under the
agreement, a material breach of contract and relevant changes of law which would render it Impossible for the operator to fulfil s requirements.

Delafls of the services e« lon arrang ts in project panles as at 31 December 2015 are as follows:
Pariod of concession
Short description of Obligations to
concession property, plant
Sector Company name Project name % owned arrangement Start date End date No. of years  and equipment
Hospitals Alder Hey (Speclal Alder Hey Children's 40% Design, build, finance ~ 01/07/2015 30/06/2045 30 Construction of new
Purpose Vehicle) Limited Hospital and operale new haospital costing
hospital in Liverpool. £167 million.
SA Health Partnership  New Royal Adelaide 17.26%  Deslign, build, finance  06/11/2011 05/06/2046 35 Construction of new
Nominees Pty Limited  Hospital and operale new hospital cosling
hospital in Adelalde, AUD $1.850 million.
South Australia.
Justice and Services Support (BTP) BTP (British 54.17%  Deslign, build, finance  26/03/1993 2B/02/2022 23 Construction
Emergency Services Limiled Transport Police) and operale one costing £2 million.
office and operate a
further six BTP
premises.
Securefuture Wirl Limited Auckland South 30% Deslign, build, finance  11/09/2012 17/05/2040 28 Construction
Comrections Facility and operale a 960 costing NZD $270
place prison al Wiri, million.
South Auckland, New
Zealand
Defence Defence Support DARA Red Dragon 100% Deslign, build and 01/08/2003 1711212019 16 Construction
(S Athan) Limited finance aircraft costing £89 million.
maintenance facilities
at RAF St. Athan.
Regeneration Inspiral Oldham Limited  Oldham Housing 95% Refurbish, finance 30/11/2011 30/11/2036 25 Construction
and operate social cosling £6B.1
housing in Oldham million.
Regenler Myalts Field Lambeth Housing 50% Build and refurbish, 04/05/2012 04/05/2037 25 Construction
North Limited finance and operale cosling £72.6
soclal housing in million.
Lambeth.
Australia Westadium Project Co  New Perth Stadium 50% Design, build, finance,  21/08/2014 31/12/12042 28 Total expenditure of

Pty Limited

a2

maintenance and
operation of new
Perth Stadium in the
Australia,

AUD $1.0 billion.



JOHN LAING INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Notes to the Group Financlal Statements

26 Disclosure - service concesslon arrangements (continued)

Perlod of concession

Short description of Obligations to
concession property, plant and
Sector Company name Project name % owned _arrangement Start date End date No. years equipment
Roads CountyRoute (A130) plc  A130 100% Design, build, finance  01/02/2000 31/01/2030 30 New build at a cost
and operale the A130 of E76 million.
bypass linking the
A12 and A127 In
Essex.

Gdansk Transport A1 Gdansk Poland 20068%  Design, bulld, finance  31/08/2004 24/08/2039 a5 New build at a cost

Company SA and operale the A1 of €651 miltion for
Motorway In Poland in phase 1 and €800
two phases. million for phase 2.

|-4 Mobility Pariners Op  [-4 Ultimate 50% Design, bulld, finance  04/09/2014 03/098/2054 40 New build at a cost

Co LLC and operate 21 miles of USD §2.32
of the 1-4 Molorway in bitlion.

USA.

1-77 Mobllity Pariners I-77 Managed Lanes 10% Design, build, finance  20/05/2015 30/11/2068 54 New build at a cost

LLC and operate 25.0 of USD $665
miles of the I-77 mililon.

Interstate in Charlolte,
North Carolina, US.

Severn River Crossing ~ Sevem River 35% Design, bulld, finance  26/04/1892 Nolater than ~ The earller of 30 Cost approximately

Pic Crossing and operalte a second 26/04/2022  years or unlll a pre- £320 miliion.
crossing over the determined level of
Sevem River plus revenue achleved
operate and malntaln
existing crossing.

MAK Mecsek Autopalya M6 Hungary 30% Deslign, construction, 01/04/2010 31/10/2037 28 Build and maintaln

Koncesszlos Zrt. refurbishment, new expressways at
operalion, a cost of €BB6
maintenance and million.
financing of 48 km
section of M6
expressway and 32
km of M60
expressway.

UK Highways AS5 AS55 100% Design, bulld, finance  16/12/1888 151212028 30 Bulld new trunk

Limited and operale the A55, road and malntain
a trunk road running existing Menal and
across lhe island of Britannia bridges al
Anplesey. a cost of £102

million.

A1 Mobil GmbH & Co. A1 Germany 42.5% Construct and operate  04/08/2008 31/08/2038 30 New build al a cost

KG the A1 Autobahn of €417.1 million,
between Bremen and
Hamburg In Germany.

A-Lanes A15 BV A15 Netherlands 28% Deslgn, bulld, finance  08/12/2010 30/06/2035 25 Extension of road at
and malnlain the A15 construction value
highway south of of €727 milllon.
Rotterdam (about 40 Maintenanca for 20
km). years costing in

tolal €204 milllon
(real).
Rall City Greenwich City Greenwich 5% Construction and 01/10/1996 31/03/2021 25 Build 4.2 km

Lewisham Rall Link plc  Lewlisham {DLR) operation of extension of the

Infrastruciure on
Lewisham extension
of the Docklands
Light Rallway (DLR).

33

DLR from Isle of
Dogs to Lewisham,
including boring of
tunnels beneath the
Thames al a cos! of
£205 million.




JOHN LAING INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Notes to the Group Financlal Statements

26 Disclosure - service lon arrang ts ( Inued)
Perlod of concession
Short description of Obligations to
concesslon property, plant and
Sector Company name Project name % owned arrangement Start date End date No. years equipment
Rall (continued) Aylesbury Vale Parkway Aylesbury Vale 50% Conslruction and 17/08/2007 13/12/2028 21 Construction costing
Limited Parkway operalion of the £15.5 million (of which
Aylesbury Vale £11.0 million Council-
Parkway Station. funded) and
maintenance over 20
years.
John Laing Rall Coleshill Parkway 100% Construction and 10/03/2006 18/08/2027 21 Cansiruclion costing
Infrastructure Limited operation of the £7.1 million (of which £56
Coleshill Parkway million Councll-funded)
Station. and malntenance over
20 years.
Denver Transil Pariners  Denver Eagle P3 45% Design, build, finance,  12/08/2010 31/12/2044 34 Construction cosling
LLe malntenance and US$1.27 blifion
operation of consisting of 35 miles of
passenger rail commuter train lines
systems in Denver, including a commuter rall
Colorado. malntenance facllity and
rall cars.
Agility Tralns West IEP (Phase 1) 24% Delivery and 25/05/2012 281172044 33 Construction costing
Limited malintenance of £1.8 blllion over 6 years
Intercity train services and malntenance cosling
on the Great Westem £65 milllon per annum
Main Line (UK) using over 27.5 years,
a fieet of new Super
Express Trains and
maintenance
facilities.
*Agllity Trains East IEP (Phase 2) 30% Dellvery and 15/04/2014 22/02/2046 32 Construction costing
Limited maintenance of £1.6 billion over 6 years
Intercity train services and maintenance costing
on the East Coast £77 million per annum
Maln Line (UK) using over 27.5 years.
a fleet of new Super
Express Trains and
malnlenance
facilities.
NGR Project Company New G tion 40% Provision and 14/01/2014 15/01/2046 32 Construction phase
Pty Limited Rollingstock maintenance of 75 cosling AUD $1.8 blilion.
new six-car tralns for
Queensiand Rall,
Auslralla
ALTRAC Light Rall Sydney Light Rall 325% Design, build, finance, 25/02/2015 16/03/2034 18 Construclion phase
Parinership operale and maintain cosling AUD $1.325
the CBD and South billion
Easl Light Rall and to
operale and maintain
“the Inner West Light
Rall in Sydney,
Australla.
Street Lighting Croydon and Lewisham  Croydon & 50% Installation and 19/04/2011 31/07/2036 25 Repiacement column
Lighting Services Limited Lewisham Street malnlenance of street programme costing
Lighting lighting. £74.2 million.
Environmental and utilities
Waste INEOS Runcom (TPS)  Manchester Wasle 37.43%  Design, build, finance  08/04/2008 07/04/2034 25 New wasle CHP plant
Limited TPS Co and operate a waste construction costing
CHP plant in £233 mitlion.
Runcom.
Viridor Laing (Greater Manchesler Wasle 50% Design, buiid and 08/04/2008 07/04/2034 25 New wasle processing
Manchester) Limiled VL Co commission 42 facllities with
facllities comprising construction costing
wasle processing and E401 million.

recycling services in
the Greater
Manchester area.



JOHN LAING INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Notes to the Group Financial Statements
27 Subsidiaries and investments

Details of the Company's subsidiaries at 31 December 2015 are as follows:

Name Country of incorporation'

Investment entity subsidiaries (measured at fair value)
Argon Ventures Limited

Croydon PSDH Holdco 2 Limited

Croydon PSDH Holdce Limited

Denver Rail (Eagle) Holdings Inc.

Forum Cambridge Holdco Limited

Hungary M8 Limited

Hyder Investments Limited

John Laing Cambridge Limited

John Laing |4 Holdco Corp

John Laing [-77 Holdce Corp

John Laing Infrastructure Limited

John Laing Infrastructure (A1 Mobil Holdings) Lid

John Laing Infrastructure (German Holdings) Limited
John Laing Infrastructure Management Services India Private Ltd
John Laing Investments (SLR) BV

John Laing Investments (A8 Mobil Holdings) Limited
John Laing Investments (German Holdings A8) Ltd
John Laing Investments (Homsdale) Pty Limited

John Laing Investments Mauritius (Holdings) Limited
John Laing Investments Mauritius (No.1) Limited

John Laing investments Netherlands Holdings BV
John Laing Investments (LBAJQ) BV

John Laing Investments (NGR) BV

John Laing Investments (NRAH) BV

John Laing Investments NZ Holdings Limited

John Laing Investments Overseas Holdings Limited
John Laing Investments (Perth Stadium) BV

John Laing Projects & Developments (Croydon) Limited
John Laing Projects & Developments (Holdings) Limited
John Laing Regeneration GP Limited

John Laing Soclal Infrastructure Limited

Laing Infrastructure Haoldings Limited

Laing Investiments Greenwich Limited

Rail Investments (Great Westemn) Limited

* Subsidiaries owned directly by the Company
** Subsidiaries owned indirectly by the Company

a5

LA S A A 3

*
-

LN S B O A A

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
UsA

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
USA

USA

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
India
Netherlands
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Australia
Mauritius
Mauritius
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Netherlands
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom

Ownership interest

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

99%
100%
100%
100%

80%



JOHN LAING INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Notes to the Group Financlal Statements
27 Subsldlaries and investments (continued)
Name

Project subsidiaries (measured at falr value)
CountyRoute (A130) Ple

CountyRoute 2 Limited

CountyRoute Limited

Defence Support (St Athan) Holdings Limited
Defence Support (St Athan) Limited
Dreachmhor Wind Farm (Holdings) Limited
Dreachmhor Wind Farm Limited

Education Support (Southend) Limited
Glencarbry (Holdings) Limited

Glencarbry Supply Company Limited
Glencarbry Windfarm Limited

Inspiral Oldham Limited

Inspiral Oldham Holdings Company Limited
John Laing (Croydon Development Company) LLP
John Laing Rall Infrastructure Limited

KGE Windpark Schipkau-Nord GmbH & Co. KG
KGE Schipkau-Nord Infrastruktur GmbH & Co. KG
Klettwitz Schipkau Nord Betelligungs GmbH
Klettwitz SN Holdings GmbH

Klettwitz SN Verwaltungs GmbH

New Alblon Wind (Holdings) Limited

New Albion Wind Limited

Rammeldalsberget Vindkraft AB
Rammeldalsberget Holding AB

Services Support (Surey) Holdings Limited
Services Support (Sumrey) Limited

Société d'Exploitation du Parc Eolien Du Tonnerols
Svarivalisberget SPW AB

Svarivalisberget Holding AB

Tonnerols (Holdings) Lid.

UK Highways Limited

UK Highways A55 (Holdings) Limited

UK Highways AS5 Limied

UK Highways Management Services Limited
Wind Hold Co 1 Limited

Wind Project Co 1 Limited

Details of the Company's joint ventures and Investments at 31 December 2015 are as follows:

Joint ventures

A Mobll Services GmbH

A1 Mobil GmbH & Co. KG

A-Lanes A16B.V.

A-Lanes Management Services BV
Agllity Trains West Limited

Agility Trains East Limited

Alder Hey (Special Purpose Vehicle) Limiled
ALTRAC Light Rall Partnership
Aylesbury Vale Parkway Limited
CCURVLLP

Cramlington Renewable Energy Developments Limited

Croydon and Lewisham Lighting Services Limited
Denver Transit Pariners LLC

Forum Cambridge LLP

Gdansk Transport Company SA

HWF 1 Pty Ltd

|4 Moblity Partners Op Co LLC

I-77 Mobllity Partners LLC

INEOS Runcom (TPS) Limited
Laing/Gladedale (Haslings) Limited
Lalng/Gladedale (St Saviours) Limited

MAK Mecsek Autopalya Koncesszlos Zrt.
New Forum Cambridge LLP

NGR Project Company Pty Limited

Regenter Myatts Field North Limited .
SA Health Partnership Nominees Pty Limited
Securefuture Wiri Limited

Services Support (BTP) Limited

Sevem River Crossing Pic

SPC Management Services BV

Speyside Renewable Energy Partnership Limited
Transcend Property Limited

Viridor Laing (Greater Manchester) Limited
Westadium Project Co Pty Limited

Wimpey Lalng lran Limited

Other Investments
City Greenwich Lewisham Rall Link plc
John Laing Environmental Assets Group Limited

* Entities owned directly by the Company
** Entitles owned Indirectly by the Company

-
H

Country of incorporation

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Ireland

Ireland

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Sweden
Sweden

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
France

Sweden
Sweden

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom

Germany
Germany
Netherlands
Netherlands
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Australia

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United States
United Kingdom
Poland
Australia

United States
United States
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Hungary

United Kingdom
Australia

United Kingdom
Australia

New Zealand
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Netherlands
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Australla
United Kingdom

United Kingdom
Guemsey

Ownership interest

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

95%

95%
100%
100%
100%

85%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

42.5%
42.5%
28%
25%
24%
30%
40%
32.5%
50%
50%
44.7%



JOHN LAING INVESTMENTS LIMITED

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2015

Notes

Fixed assets
Investments 3
Current assets
Debtors

- due within one year 4

- due after more than one year 4
Cash at bank and in hand 5
Current liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 6
Net current liabllities
Total assets less current liabilities
Net assets
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 8
Profit and loss account 9
Shareholder's funds 10

2015 2014
£ million £ million
3126 3497
280.8 262.5
135.5 126.4
145.3 136.1
115.5 47.7
386.3 310.2
(469.5) (440.8)
(73.2) (130.6)
239.4 219.1
239.4 219.1
- 30.0
238.4 189.1
239.4 2181

The financial statements of John Laing Investments Limited, registered number 780225, were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised

for issue on 26 May 2016. They were signed on its behalf by:

D
B J T Pieterse
Director
26 May 2016
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JOHN LAING INVESTMENTS LIMITED

1

a)

b)

c)

Notes to the Company financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation of accounis

The Company accounts are prepared under Financial Reporting Standard 102 ("FRS 102). These financial statements are presented in pounds
sterling, the functional currency, the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates. The principal accounfing
policles of the Company are set out below.

The Company's principal activity is to hold investments in PPP companies that provide services under certain private finance agreements and in
other infrastructure projects (including renewable energy projects). The infrastructure projects are set up as special purpose companies under
non-recourse arrangements and therefore the Company has limited exposure to their liabilities. In the event of default of an infrastruclure project,
the exposure is limited to the extent of the investment the Company has made. Having reviewed the Company's investment portfolio including
the associated future cash requirements and forecast receipts, and the level of headroom within the John Laing Group plc corporate banking
facility to which the Company is a co-borrower, the Directors are satisfied that they have a reasonable expectation that the Company will have
access to adequate resources to continue in existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the financial statements.

In accordance wilh section 408 of the Companies Act 2008, no separate profit and loss account has been presented for the Company. For the
year ended 31 December 2015 the Company reported a profit of £20.3 million (2014 - £46.6 million). The Directors authorised payment of a
dividend of £nil (2014 - £40.0 million) during the year.

Revenue recognition

Revenue recognition is determined by reference to the following policies:

Dividend income from investments in project companies and other investments is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive payment
has been established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably). Dividend income is recognised gross of withholding tax, if any, and only when approved and paid by the project company.

Interest income is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be
measured reliably. Interest income is accrued by reference to the principal outstanding and the applicable interest rate.

Investments

Fixed asset investments are shown at cost less provision for impairment.

An impairment is reversed in the current period, to the extent of the carrying value of the investment had the original impairment not occurred, if
there is a change in economic conditions or a change in expected use of the investment. If the increase in value of the invesiment arises from
mechanical factors affecting the discounted present value, such as the passage of time either bringing future cash inflows closer or overtaking
future cash outflows, such an increase in value is not considered to be a reversal of the events or circumstances which led to the impairment in
the first place.

Income from investments is included in the profit and loss account as declared.

a8



JOHN LAING INVESTMENTS LIMITED

d)

e)

Notes to the Company financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation
Current tax, Including United Kingdom Corporation tax and foreign tax, Is provided at amounts expected fo be pald (or recovered) using the tax
rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date.

In accordance with section 28 of FRS 102: Deferred Tax, deferred taxation is recognised in respect of all timing differences that have originated
but not reversed at the balance sheet date where transactions or events that result in an obligation to pay more tax In the future or a right to pay
less tax In the future have occurred at the balance sheet date. Timing differences are differences between the Company's taxable profits and its
results as stated in the financial statements that arise from the inclusion of gains and losses in tax assessments in periods different from those in
which they are recognised in the financial statements.

A net deferred tax asset is regarded as recoverable and therefore recognised only when, on the basis of all available evidence, it can be
regarded as more likely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of the underlying timing differences can
be deducted. Deferred tax is measured at the average tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the timing differences are
expected to reverse, based on the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax
assets are not discounted.

Foreign currency_
Translations into sterling are made at the average rates ruling throughout the year for profit and loss account items.

Exchange differences arising in the ordinary course of trading are reflected in the profit and loss account; those arising on translation of net equity
are dealt with as a movement in reserves.

Monelary assets and liabilities expressed in foreign currency are reported at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date, or If
appropriate, at the forward contract rate. Any difference arising on retranslation of these amounts is taken to the profit and loss account.
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JOHN LAING INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Notes to the Ci i fal for the year ended 31 December 2015 (continued)
DIVIDENDS
The following dividends have baen paid during the year 2015 2014
Equity shares £ million £ mifion
- dividend pald of Enil per ordinary share (2014 - E1 33 per ordinary shara) - (40.0)
- (40.0)
INVESTMENTS
Subsidlary
undertakings Jolnt ventures
Equity Equlty Loans Other Total
£ million £ million £ million £ mifilon E million
Cost
At 1 January 2015 2500 23 579 835 3737
Additions 197 01 82 . 290
Disposals (0.5) @2) 3 (47.8) (50.5)
At 31 December 2015 269.2 0.2 67.1 15.7 352.2
Provisions for impairment
At 1 January 2015 (218) 22) 02) - (24.0)
Disposals - - - . -
Transfer - - - = %
{Charge)/credit for the year {17.6) 22 (02) - (15.6)
At 31 December 2015 (39.2) - (0.4) = (39.6)
Net book value
At 31 December 2015 230.0 0.2 66.7 15.7 3126
At 31 December 2014 2284 0.1 1.7 835 3487
The Company’s subsidiary undertakings and joint ventures are listed in notr 27 of the Group financial stalements

Subsidiary undertaking additions and disposals

During 2015, the Company subscribed for sharas in the following companies: 25,000 shares in Klettwitz Schipkau Nord Betelligungs GmbH; 1,000 shares in Société d Exploitation du
Parc Eolien Du Tonnerols; 1,000 shares in Glencarbry (Holdings) Limited, a further 11,000 shares in John Laing Investments Overseas Holdings Ltd, 200 shares in Denver Rail (Eaple)
Holdings Inc and 100 shares in John Laing Invesiments |-77 Holdco Comp

During 2015, the Company so'd its entre holding in Branden Solar Parks (Holdings) Limited, Carscreugh (Holdings) Limited, Wear Point Wind Holdco Limited and BL Wind Holding 1o
JLEN for £71.7 million. The Company aiso sold its entire holding in Dhule Palesner Tolway Lid for £1.6 mifion to a third party. The Company Incurrad costs of £0.4 mifion in 2015 in
relation o the disposal in 2014 of its entire holding in ELWA Holdings Limiled

Kay Joint venture additions and disposals

On 14 July 2015, the Company subscribed for 3,000 shares of €1 00 each in SPC Managemant Services B V. for £0.1 million On 17 July 2015, the Company subscnbed for 22 shares of
£0.0001 each in Cramiinglon Energy D F Holdco Ltd for E2 24

Loan additions
During 2015, the Company invested in loan noles in the following joint venlure I pay ble Energy F ip Hold Co Lid (E5.4 million) and Aider Hey Holdco 3
Lid (£3 7 million)

Other investment disposals

In February 2015, the Company transferred 28 8% of its shareholding-in JLEN, valued al £50.4 million, lo John Laing Pension Fund through John Laing Limited
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JOHN LAING INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Notes to the Company i s for the year ended 31 December 2015 (continued)
DEBTORS
2015 2014
£ miltion £ million
Due within one year
Amoaunts awed by parent and fellow group undertakings 107.7 868
A s owed by joint vent 278 382
Group relief receivable - na
Prepayments and accrued incoma - 06
135.5 126 4
Due after more than one year
Amounis owed by parent and fellow group undertakings 16.3 487
Amounts owed by subsidiary project companies 125.0 B7 .4
145.3 1361

Included within amounts owed by parent and fellow group underiakings due within one year are loans fo parent and feliow group underlakings amounting to £83.3 million. net of
impalrment provisions of £6.5 million (2014 - £74.4 milien, nel of £7.3 million of provisions). These loans are payable on demand and interes! is charged at 3.5% above base rale from
January 2015 to February 2015 and 2.75% above base rate from March 2015 fo December 2015 (2014 - 3 5% above base rate from January 2014 1o March 2014, Oclober 2014 to
December 2014 and 3.0% above base rate from April 2014 ta Seplember 2014). Interesi recaivable at 31 December 2015 included above is £9.4 million (2014 - £10.7 million)

The amounts cwed by joint venturas due within one year comprise inlerasi charged on loans to joini vent (included within Is in note 3) at rales ranging between 5% and
15% (2014 - 8% and 12%).

Included within amounts owed by parent and feliow group undertakings due afier more than one year are loans fo leliow group undertakings amaunting to £16.3 million net of impaiment
provisions of E16.0 milion (2014 - £43 8 million, net of E20.8 million of provisions). An agreement is in place stating that this amount will not ba recalled within 12 months of the balance
sheet date. Amounts owed by sub Yy project les are each repay in Instaim In line with an ag wilh the respecth . Inlerest is charged on the loan
noles on an arm's langth basis al rates ranging batween 5.55% lo 10% (2014 - 5.55% to 11.93%)

CASH AT BANK AND IN HAND
2015 2014
£ millien £ milion
Cash al bank and in hand 115.5 4717
115.5 47.7
Cash at bank and in hand Includes amounts placed on deposil that coll; future i Into project panies of £115 2 mitlion (2014 - £47 6 million)
CREDITORS
2015 2014
£ millian E milian
Amounts falling due within one year
Amaunis ewed to parent and felow group undertakings 466.1 4372
Group relef payable 16 -
Amounis owed 1o joint ventures 08 07
Accruals and deferred income 1.0 29
469.5 44068

Included within amounts owed to group undertakings are loans frem parent and felow group companies amounting to E425 7 million (2014 - £374 3 milion). These loans are repayable
on demand and interest is charged on any oulstanding balance al 3 25% (2014 - 3 §%) above base rale Interes! payable on these loans al 31 December 2015 included above Is E13.1
million (2014 - £11 3 million)

The owed to joint are repayable on di d. There Is no interes! payable on these balances,

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS

At31D ber 2014, the Company was a under the £353 9 million syndicaled, commilted, revolving credit facility datad 20 February 2013, entered inlo by John Laing Limited
On 17 February 2015, the John Laing Group ralsed a £350 million syndicated, commitied, revolving eredit facility and associated ancillary facilities. in conjunction with admission to the
London Stock Exchange, and the E353 8 milion facility was cancelled along with the Company's guarantes At thal date, the exisling liabiitles under the £353.9 milion facility were
transferred ta tha £350 million faclity and associated ancillary faciities The Company became a guarantor under the £350 million facility and the associaled ancillary faclities At 31
December 2015, the tatal amount ulilised under the £350 million facllity and associated ancillary facidies, and hance guaranteed by the Company. was £174 2 milion (2104 - E244 9
million).

At 31 December 2015, the Company was a guarantor of an uncommitiad bonding facilty from Zunch entered into by John Laing Limited At 31 December 2015 the lotal amoun! utiisad
under the Zurich facility, and hence guaranlaed by the Company, was E4 0 million (2014 - Eniy).

As a1 31 December 2015, the Ci had fulure i on s of £182 4 milion (2014 - £182 4 miliion)
2015 2014
£ milllon . E million
Less than one year 82.7 164
Grealer than one year but lass than two years 27.0 933
Between two fo five years 2.7 727
More than five years S *
192.4 1824

The future investment commitments were backed by letters of credit of E133.7 milion {2014 - £174.3 million) and cash collateral balances of £58 7 million (2014 - £7 9 mikion) In addition
the Company had provided letters of credit of £20.5 million (2014 - £69.3 million) and cash collateral of £56 5 million (2014 - E38.7 milion) 1o back future investmant commitments of its
subsidiary undarakings




JOHN LAING INVESTMENTS LIMITED
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Notes to the Ci lal for the year ended 31 December 2015 (continued)
CALLED UP BHARE CAPITAL
2015 2014
£ million E million
Allotted, called up and fully paid;
10,000 ordinary shares of £1 each (2014 - 30,000,000 ordinary shares of £1 each) - 300

On 13 April 2015, the Company made a bonus Issue lo John Llhn lem of 28,354,758 new ordinary shares of £1 each through the capitalisation of £28,354,759 standing o the credit
of the Company’s profit and loss reserve. The Comp ly undericok a of capital by way of by can g all bul 10,000 of its 56,354,758
ordinary shares, with the reserva arising from the nwdhn of capital tfllud as a realised profit This led to the Company hamﬂ In Issue 10,000 nrdmlry shares of £1.00 each at 31
December 2015.

MOVEMENT IN RESERVES
Profitand
loss account
£ milllon
AL 1 January 2015 1891
Prufit for the financial year 203
Reduction in share capital (note 8) 300
At 31 December 2015 239.4
RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN SHAREHOLDER'S FUNDS
2015 2014
£ miliion £ milkon
Profit for the financial year 203 466
Dividends paid on equity shares (note 2} - {40.0)
Nel addiion to shareholder's funds 203 66
Opening shareholder's funds 2194 2125
Closing shareholder’s funds 239.4 219.1
TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
As a wholly owned subsidiary of John Lsing Group plc. the Company has taken advantage of the P under Section 33 of FRS 102 nol to provide information on related party
jons with other subsidiary within the John Laing group
ULTIMATE PARENT UNDERTAKING
The Company's i parent p is John Laing Limited, a company incorporated in Greal Britain

The Company's ultimate parent and controling entity is John Laing Group plc, a company incarporated in Great Britain
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John laing

Form G-1: Material Changes

High Performance Transportation Enterprise and Colorado Bridge Enterprise
c/o High Performance Transportation Enterprise

4201 East Arkansas Avenue

Denver, Colorado 80222

Attn: Keith Stefanik, Procuring Authorities’ Contact Person

June 1, 2017

Re. Material Changes Letter
in connection with the Instruction to Proposers for the Central 70 Project (“1TP")

I, Patrick O’'D Bourke, in my capacity as Director of John Laing Investments Limited (the “Company”), an
Equity Member in Front Range Mobility Group, and not in my personal capacity, deliver this letter
pursuant to Section 3.2 of the Administrative and Technical Proposal Submission Requirements and
hereby confirm as follows.

There have been no material changes in the Company’s financial capacity since Proposer submitted its
SOQ and no material changes are anticipated to occur during the remainder of the Company’s current
fiscal year.

Unless defined herein, capitalized terms used in this letter have the meanings given to them in the ITP.
Yours,

Patrick O’D Bourke

John Laing Investments Ltd
1 Kingsway

London

WC2B 6AN

Tel: +44 (0)20 7901 3200
Fax: +44 (0)20 7901 3520
www.laing.com

Registered in England  Registered Number: 780225 Registered Office: 1 Kingsway, London, WC2B 6AN


http://maps.google.co.uk/maps?hl=en&tab=wl
http://maps.google.co.uk/maps?hl=en&tab=wl
http://maps.google.co.uk/maps?hl=en&tab=wl
http://maps.google.co.uk/maps?hl=en&tab=wl
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Form G-2: Off Balance Sheet Liabilities

High Performance Transportation Enterprise and Colorado Bridge Enterprise
c/o High Performance Transportation Enterprise

4201 East Arkansas Avenue

Denver, Colorado 80222

Attn: Keith Stefanik, Procuring Authorities’ Contact Person

June 1, 2017

Re. Off Balance Sheet Liabilities Letter
in connection with the Instruction to Proposers for the Central 70 Project (“1TP")

I, Patrick O'D Bourke, in my capacity as Director of John Laing Investments Limited (the “Company”), an
Equity Member in Front Range Mobility Group, and not in my personal capacity, deliver this letter
pursuant to Section 3.3 of the Administrative and Technical Proposal Submission Requirements set out in
the ITP and hereby confirm as follows.

Except as set forth in the Exhibit attached hereto, there are no off balance sheet liabilities for any fiscal
year of the Company in respect of which financial statements have been submitted in accordance
with Section 3.1 of the Administrative and Technical Proposal Submission Requirements that exceed
$25 million in aggregate in such fiscal year.

Yours,

Patrick O’D Bourke

John Laing Investments Ltd
1 Kingsway

London

WC2B 6AN

Tel: +44 (0)20 7901 3200

Fax: +44 (0)20 7901 3520

-1- www.laing.com

Registered in England  Registered Number: 780225 Registered Office: 1 Kingsway, London, WC2B 6AN


http://maps.google.co.uk/maps?hl=en&tab=wl
http://maps.google.co.uk/maps?hl=en&tab=wl
http://maps.google.co.uk/maps?hl=en&tab=wl
http://maps.google.co.uk/maps?hl=en&tab=wl

Central 70 Project: Instructions to Proposers

Part H: Form G-2

EXHIBIT

Final RFP

In accordance with Section 3.3 of the Administrative and Technical Proposal Submission Requirements,
the following sets out a description of off balance sheet liabilities:

2015 Fiscal year for which there are off balance sheet liabilities in excess of $25m in aggregate:

Operating Leases

Letters of Credit, Performance Bonds and Guarantees

Total Off Balance Sheet Liabilities at

31 Dec 2015

Number 31 Dec 2015
of Items USD millions
0 -
9 236.0
9 2360
FX Rate at 31 Dec 2015 1.4833

31 Dec 2015
£ millions

159.1

159.1
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Central 70 Project: Instructions to Proposers Final RFP
Part H: Form G-3 Addendum No. 1

Front Range
Mability Group

Form G-3: Credit Ratings
Proposer Name: Front Range Mobility Group
Credit Ratings
Role Entity Name Fitch Moody’s | S&P DBRS | Change(s)in any | Describe Change(s)
credit ratings
since SOQ?
EM, LO HOCHTIEF PPP Not Not Not Not [JYes X No
Solutions North rated rated rated rated
America, Inc.
EM, LO | ACS Infrastructure Not Not Not Not [JYes X No
Development, Inc. rated rated rated rated
EM, LO AECOM Capital, Inc. Not Not Not Not [dYes X No
rated rated rated rated
EM John Laing Investments Not Not Not Not OYes X No
Limited rated rated rated rated
LC Flatiron Constructors, Not Not Not Not OYes X No
Inc. rated rated rated rated
LC Dragados USA, Inc. Not Not Not Not OYes X No
rated rated rated rated
LC AECOM Energy & Not Not Not Not [dyes X No
Construction, Inc. rated rated rated rated
LE CH2M HILL Engineers, Not Not Not Not [dyes X No
Inc. rated rated rated rated
LE AECOM Technical Not Not Not Not OYes X No
Services, Inc. rated rated rated rated
FRP HOCHTIEF Not Not BBB Not X Yes [1No Now rated by S&P
Aktiengesellschaft rated rated rated
FRP HOCHTIEF PPP Not Not Not Not [dyes X No
Solutions GmbH rated rated rated rated
FRP HOCHTIEF USA, Inc. Not Not Not Not [dYes X No
rated rated rated rated
FRP ACS Servicios y Not Not Not Not [dYes X No
Concesiones, S.L. rated rated rated rated
FRP AECOM Not Ba2 BB Not X Yes [1No Now rated by S&P in addition
rated rated to Moody'’s; Moody'’s rating
has not changed since the
S0Q
FRP Dragados, S.A. Not Not Not Not [dyes X No
rated rated rated rated
FRP John Laing Group plc Not Not Not Not [dyes X No
rated rated rated rated
FRP CH2M HILL Companies, | Not Not Not Not [dYes X No
Ltd rated rated rated rated




Flatiron Constructors, Inc.
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Central 70 Project: Instructions to Proposers Final RFP
Part H: Form G-3 Addendum No. 1

Front Range
Mability Group

Form G-3: Credit Ratings
Proposer Name: Front Range Mobility Group
Credit Ratings
Role Entity Name Fitch Moody’s | S&P DBRS | Change(s)in any | Describe Change(s)
credit ratings
since SOQ?
EM, LO HOCHTIEF PPP Not Not Not Not [JYes X No
Solutions North rated rated rated rated
America, Inc.
EM, LO | ACS Infrastructure Not Not Not Not [JYes X No
Development, Inc. rated rated rated rated
EM, LO AECOM Capital, Inc. Not Not Not Not [dYes X No
rated rated rated rated
EM John Laing Investments Not Not Not Not OYes X No
Limited rated rated rated rated
LC Flatiron Constructors, Not Not Not Not OYes X No
Inc. rated rated rated rated
LC Dragados USA, Inc. Not Not Not Not OYes X No
rated rated rated rated
LC AECOM Energy & Not Not Not Not [dyes X No
Construction, Inc. rated rated rated rated
LE CH2M HILL Engineers, Not Not Not Not [dyes X No
Inc. rated rated rated rated
LE AECOM Technical Not Not Not Not OYes X No
Services, Inc. rated rated rated rated
FRP HOCHTIEF Not Not BBB Not X Yes [1No Now rated by S&P
Aktiengesellschaft rated rated rated
FRP HOCHTIEF PPP Not Not Not Not [dyes X No
Solutions GmbH rated rated rated rated
FRP HOCHTIEF USA, Inc. Not Not Not Not [dYes X No
rated rated rated rated
FRP ACS Servicios y Not Not Not Not [dYes X No
Concesiones, S.L. rated rated rated rated
FRP AECOM Not Ba2 BB Not X Yes [1No Now rated by S&P in addition
rated rated to Moody'’s; Moody'’s rating
has not changed since the
S0Q
FRP Dragados, S.A. Not Not Not Not [dyes X No
rated rated rated rated
FRP John Laing Group plc Not Not Not Not [dyes X No
rated rated rated rated
FRP CH2M HILL Companies, | Not Not Not Not [dYes X No
Ltd rated rated rated rated
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Central 70 Project: Instructions to Proposers Final RFP
Part H: Form G-3 Addendum No. 1

Front Range
Mability Group

Form G-3: Credit Ratings
Proposer Name: Front Range Mobility Group
Credit Ratings
Role Entity Name Fitch Moody’s | S&P DBRS | Change(s)in any | Describe Change(s)
credit ratings
since SOQ?
EM, LO HOCHTIEF PPP Not Not Not Not [JYes X No
Solutions North rated rated rated rated
America, Inc.
EM, LO | ACS Infrastructure Not Not Not Not [JYes X No
Development, Inc. rated rated rated rated
EM, LO AECOM Capital, Inc. Not Not Not Not [dYes X No
rated rated rated rated
EM John Laing Investments Not Not Not Not OYes X No
Limited rated rated rated rated
LC Flatiron Constructors, Not Not Not Not OYes X No
Inc. rated rated rated rated
LC Dragados USA, Inc. Not Not Not Not OYes X No
rated rated rated rated
LC AECOM Energy & Not Not Not Not [dyes X No
Construction, Inc. rated rated rated rated
LE CH2M HILL Engineers, Not Not Not Not [dyes X No
Inc. rated rated rated rated
LE AECOM Technical Not Not Not Not OYes X No
Services, Inc. rated rated rated rated
FRP HOCHTIEF Not Not BBB Not X Yes [1No Now rated by S&P
Aktiengesellschaft rated rated rated
FRP HOCHTIEF PPP Not Not Not Not [dyes X No
Solutions GmbH rated rated rated rated
FRP HOCHTIEF USA, Inc. Not Not Not Not [dYes X No
rated rated rated rated
FRP ACS Servicios y Not Not Not Not [dYes X No
Concesiones, S.L. rated rated rated rated
FRP AECOM Not Ba2 BB Not X Yes [1No Now rated by S&P in addition
rated rated to Moody'’s; Moody'’s rating
has not changed since the
S0Q
FRP Dragados, S.A. Not Not Not Not [dyes X No
rated rated rated rated
FRP John Laing Group plc Not Not Not Not [dyes X No
rated rated rated rated
FRP CH2M HILL Companies, | Not Not Not Not [dYes X No
Ltd rated rated rated rated
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CH2M

9191 South Jamaica Street
Englewood, CO 80112-5946
0 303.771.0900

F 720.286.9250
www.ch2m.com

June 1, 2017

High Performance Transportation Enterprise and Colorado Bridge Enterprise
c/o High Performance Transportation Enterprise

4201 East Arkansas Avenue

Denver, Colorado 80222

Attn: Keith Stefanik, Procuring Authorities’ Contact Person

Re: Statement regarding Financial Statements in Connection with the Central 70 Project

CH2M HILL Engineers, Inc. does not produce standalone financial statements. As such, their 2016 and 2015 financial
statements can be found consolidated within their Financially Responsible Party’s financial statements found behind the
tab “CH2M HILL Companies, Ltd.”
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June 1, 2017

High Performance Transportation Enterprise and Colorado Bridge Enterprise
c¢/o High Performance Transportation Enterprise

4201 East Arkansas Avenue

Denver, Colorado 80222

Attn: Keith Stefanik, Procuring Authorities’ Contact Person

Ra, Material Changes Letter
in connection with the Instruction to Proposers for the Central 70 Project (“ITP”)

|, Steven Mathews, in my capacity as Treasurer of CHZM HILL Engineers, Inc. {the “Company”), a member of the Lead
Engineer in Front Range Mobility Group, and not in my personal capacity, deliver this letter pursuant to Section 3.2 of
the Administrative and Technical Proposal Submission Requirements and hereby confirm as follows.

Except as set forth in the Exhibits A, B, C, D, E and F attached hereto, there have been no material changes in the
Company's financial capacity since Proposer submitted its SOQ.

Unless defined herein, capitalized terms used in this letter have the meanings given to them in the iTP.

Respectfully submitted,

T Mo orr—

Name: Steven Mathews
Title: Treasurer
CH2M HILL Engineers, Inc.



EXHIBIT A

Part I. In accordance with Section 3.1.2.a of the Financial Proposal Instructions, the following sets out a
description of an actual or anticipated material change:

i. such change;

1. Material Project Losses: Reference Exhibit A-1.

ii. actual and anticipated changes or disruptions in executive management relating to such change;
No changes or disruptions realized or anticipated.

iii. the likelihood that such change will continue during the proposed period of Project construction;

It is anticipated that the aforementioned material changes will have minimal to no future impact on
operations including the delivery of the Project.

iv. the projected full extent, nature and impact, positive and negative, of such change experienced and
anticipated to be experienced in the proposed period of Project construction;

It is anticipated that the aforementioned material changes will have minimal to no future impact on
operations including the delivery of the Project.

v. how such change is anticipated to affect the organizational and financial capacity and ability of the
relevant entity to remain engaged in the procurement described in the RFP and to ultimately
participate in the Project as anticipated by the relevant Proposal.

It is anticipated that the aforementioned material changes will have minimal to no future impact on
operations including the delivery of the Project.

Part Il. In accordance with Section 3.1.2.b of the Financial Proposal Instructions, set out below are
estimates of the impact of the material change on:
i. revenues;

It is anticipated that the aforementioned material changes will have minimal to no future impact on
operations including the Project.

ii. expenses;

It is anticipated that the aforementioned material changes will have minimal to no future impact on
operations including the delivery of the Project.

iii. change in equity availability.

It is anticipated that the aforementioned material changes will have minimal to no future impact on
operations including the delivery of the Project.

Part lll. In accordance with Section 3.1.2.c of the Financial Proposal Instructions, if the material change
will have a negative financial impact, an explanation of measures that have been taken, are currently in




progress or would be reasonably anticipated to be taken to insulate the Project from any such material
change:

It is anticipated that the aforementioned material changes will have minimal to no future impact on
operations including the delivery of the Project.



EXHIBIT A-1

Material Project Losses: We (CH2M) have a fixed-price Transportation contract to design and construct
roadway improvements on an expressway in the southwestern United States. The project is
approximately 75% complete as of December 30, 2016. In 2014, we experienced unforeseen and
unexpected cost growth resulting in charges to operations totaling 538.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2014, which included both the reversal of previously recognized profits as well as the
recording of the estimated total loss on the project at completion. In 2015, additional increases to the
cost estimates were identified primarily caused by design changes for a water main relocation, the
discovery of extremely hard and abrasive rock during construction, differing site conditions, unidentified
and mismarked utilities, client requested changes, labor supply challenges in the construction market,
lower than expected labor productivity, and severe adverse weather delays. These increased cost growth
resulted in the recording of additional project losses of $93.6 million in the year ended December 25,
2015.

During the first half of 2016, we estimated further cost growth in the amount of $60.0 million as a result
of a review of the covered scope of contracts, survey engineering and design challenges, rework of
previously installed work and client-caused delays, including limited daytime access to portions of the
site, the sum of which resulted in increased material quantities and work and schedule extensions. We
also had severe weather including record rainfall, and production shortfalls resulting from differing site
conditions and engineering rework. Additionally, during the second half of 2016, we estimated additional
cost growth of $61.3 million due to continued survey engineering and design challenges, additional
rework, greater than expected subcontractor costs, subcontracting work previously planned to be self-
performed, delivery schedule extensions (which increased the overall estimated costs for labor and
expenses), greater than expected construction material expenditures, and additional weather delays.

In the quarter ended March 31, 2017, the project team increased the overall estimated costs for labor
and materials by a total of $23.5 million. The cost growth was predominately related to unanticipated
field conditions and labor resource restraints, some of which costs are being included in claims submitted
to the client. While the project team believes that the increase in costs is sufficient to cover known issues,
additional design, fabrication, construction or labor resource issues could be encountered resulting in
further cost growth. Certain of these additional costs are believed to be the result of construction errors
incurred by a subcontractor as well as specifications provided by the client that were determined to be
incorrect.

We expect to seek resolution of these first quarter 2017 issues from the subcontractor in addition to
seeking resolution of the outstanding change orders and claims through a combination of submissions to
the Disputes Board under the terms of the contract and direct negotiations with the client. Change orders
and claims totaling approximately $100.0 million have been submitted to the client. We have received
favorable, non-binding recommendations from the Disputes Board on some of the claims. We have not
been able to reach a mutual resolution with the client on these claims or the other change orders
submitted. CH2M will continue to aggressively pursue its entitlements based on claims and change
orders, including litigation if it cannot reach resolution with the client. Accordingly, we cannot currently
estimate the timing or amounts of recoveries or costs that may be achieved or incurred through these
resolution processes, and as such, we have not included any recoveries from these change orders and
claims in our current estimated project loss.

Within our Power EPC segment, we were involved in a fixed-price EPC project in Australia through a
consolidated joint venture partnership with an Australian construction contractor and a major U.S.-based
gas power technology manufacturer (the “Consortium”) to engineer, procure, construct and start-up a
combined cycle power plant that will supply power to a large liquefied natural gas facility in Australia. As
of December 30, 2016, the total contract value of the joint venture project was approximately $520.0
million, and the project was approximately 85% complete. Due to a variety of issues, the joint
experienced project losses of $280.0 million in 2014, of which our portion of the loss was 5140.0 million.
During the second quarter of 2016, the client advised it was unable to meet various obligations in line
with the program schedule as required under the terms of the contract. Subsequently in 2016, the client

4



was unable to confirm the timing of its deliverables under the terms of the contract including the supply
of feed gas, plant utilities and electrical power loads. As a result, the anticipated project completion date
was expected to be delayed into 2018, thus significantly increasing the joint venture’s costs estimated to
complete the project. Additionally, forecasted productivity levels that were assumed for construction
completion had not been achieved, including as a result of client delays and disruptions, also increasing
the joint venture’s total estimated costs to complete. As a result of these factors, as well as others, and
inclusive of estimated anticipated further disruptions and inefficiencies, the joint venture recognized
additional costs totaling $301.5 million in 2016, of which our portion was 5154.1 million.

On January 24, 2017, the Consortium terminated its contract with its client the general contractor, JKC
Australia LNG Pty (the “Contractor”) on the grounds that the Contractor had by its actions repudiated the
contract. The Contractor has claimed that the Consortium’s termination was not valid. The Consortium,
which includes the consolidated Australian joint venture partnership, expects to file arbitration claims
against the Contractor during the first half of 2017, and anticipates that the Contractor will file counter
claims. We expect a lengthy, multi-year arbitration process and at this time we are unable to predict the
timing of resolution or the outcome of disputes. While we continue to assess the possible impacts to our
financial statements, the ultimate outcome of the dispute will depend upon contested issues of fact and
law.

As a result of the contract termination, we evaluated the potential future costs as of December 30, 2016
in accordance with the accounting standards applicable to contingent liabilities. The joint venture has
incurred costs totaling approximately $20.0 million in 2017 to demobilize from the site and expects to
continue to incur significant legal and other costs until the dispute is resolved. The Consortium is also in
the process of determining the required costs to close out and terminate its current subcontractor
obligations. These costs, which we expect will be incurred in 2017, have been accrued within our
provision for loss accrual in our consolidated financial statements as of December 30, 2016 based upon
our best estimate from the information currently available. It is possible that certain subcontractors
could f ile claims against the Consortium as a result of our termination of their subcontract which could
be material to our consolidated financial statements. Additionally, the joint venture’s performance on
the project is secured by certain bonds totaling approximately $50.0 million which could potentially be
called by our client at some time in the future. If we are ultimately unsuccessful in our claim that the
contract was repudiated by our client, the Consortium could be liable for the completion of the project by
a separate contractor and other related damages. These additional costs could be materially adverse to
our results of operations, cash flow and financial condition in the future.



EXHIBIT B

Part I. In accordance with Section 3.1.2.a of the Financial Proposal Instructions, the following sets out a
description of an actual or anticipated material change:

i. such change;

1. Preferred Stock Issuance: Reference Exhibit B-1.

ii. actual and anticipated changes or disruptions in executive management relating to such change;
Reference response in Exhibit A.

iii. the likelihood that such change will continue during the proposed period of Project construction;
Reference response in Exhibit A.

iv. the projected full extent, nature and impact, positive and negative, of such change experienced and
anticipated to be experienced in the proposed period of Project construction;

Reference response in Exhibit A.

v. how such change is anticipated to affect the organizational and financial capacity and ability of the
relevant entity to remain engaged in the procurement described in the RFP and to ultimately
participate in the Project as anticipated by the relevant Proposal.

Reference response in Exhibit A.

Part Il. In accordance with Section 3.1.2.b of the Financial Proposal Instructions, set out below are
estimates of the impact of the material change on:

i. revenues;

Reference response in Exhibit A.

ii. expenses;

Reference response in Exhibit A.

iii. change in equity availability.

Reference response in Exhibit A.

Part lll. In accordance with Section 3.1.2.c of the Financial Proposal Instructions, if the material change
will have a negative financial impact, an explanation of measures that have been taken, are currently in

progress or would be reasonably anticipated to be taken to insulate the Project from any such material
change:

Reference response in Exhibit A.



EXHIBIT B-1

Preferred Stock Issuance: As of March 31, 2017, the Company (CH2M) had 50,000,000 shares of
preferred stock, 50.01 par value, authorized. On June 22, 2015, the Company designated 10,000,000
shares as Series A Preferred Stock with an original issue price of $62.22 under the Certificate of
Designation. On June 24, 2015, the Company sold and issued an aggregate of 3,214,400 shares of Series
A Preferred Stock for an aggregate purchase price of $200.0 million in a private placement to a
subsidiary owned by investment funds affiliated with Apollo Global Management, LLC (together with its
subsidiaries, “Apollo”). Total proceeds from the preferred stock offering were $191.7 million, net of
issuance costs of $8.3 million. The sale occurred in connection with the initial closing pursuant to the
Subscription Agreement entered into by the Company and Apollo on May 27, 2015 (“Subscription
Agreement”). On April 11, 2016, Apollo purchased an additional 1,607,200 shares of Series A Preferred
Stock for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $100.0 million in a second closing subject to the
conditions within the Subscription Agreement. Total proceeds from the preferred stock offering were
599.8 million, net of issuance costs of 50.2 million.



EXHIBIT C

Part I. In accordance with Section 3.1.2.a of the Financial Proposal Instructions, the following sets out a
description of an actual or anticipated material change:

i. such change;

1. Restructuring and Related Charges: Reference Exhibit C-1.

ii. actual and anticipated changes or disruptions in executive management relating to such change;
Reference response in Exhibit A.

iii. the likelihood that such change will continue during the proposed period of Project construction;
Reference response in Exhibit A.

iv. the projected full extent, nature and impact, positive and negative, of such change experienced and
anticipated to be experienced in the proposed period of Project construction;

Reference response in Exhibit A.

v. how such change is anticipated to affect the organizational and financial capacity and ability of the
relevant entity to remain engaged in the procurement described in the RFP and to ultimately
participate in the Project as anticipated by the relevant Proposal.

Reference response in Exhibit A.

Part Il. In accordance with Section 3.1.2.b of the Financial Proposal Instructions, set out below are
estimates of the impact of the material change on:

i. revenues;

Reference response in Exhibit A.

ii. expenses;

Reference response in Exhibit A.

iii. change in equity availability.

Reference response in Exhibit A.

Part lll. In accordance with Section 3.1.2.c of the Financial Proposal Instructions, if the material change
will have a negative financial impact, an explanation of measures that have been taken, are currently in

progress or would be reasonably anticipated to be taken to insulate the Project from any such material
change:

Reference response in Exhibit A.



EXHIBIT C-1

Restructuring and Related Charges: During the third quarter of 2016, the Company (CH2M) began a
process to review the structure and resources within its business segments and formulate a restructuring
plan to more fully align global operations with the Company’s client-centric strategy, including a
simplified organization structure and streamlined delivery model to achieve higher levels of profitable
growth (“2016 Restructuring Plan”). The restructuring activities primarily include workforce reductions
and facilities consolidations. During the three months ended March 31, 2017, we incurred $13.1 million
of costs for these restructuring activities related to the 2016 Restructuring Plan, which have been
included in selling, general and administrative expense on the consolidated statements of operations.
Overall, as of March 31, 2017, we have incurred aggregate costs of $55.3 million in total restructuring
charges under the 2016 Restructuring Plan. We completed the 2016 Restructuring Plan in the first
quarter of 2017, and we expect aggregate annual cost savings of approximately $100.0 million.



EXHIBIT D

Part I. In accordance with Section 3.1.2.a of the Financial Proposal Instructions, the following sets out a
description of an actual or anticipated material change:

i. such change;

1. Changes in Defined Benefit Plans: Reference Exhibit D-1.

ii. actual and anticipated changes or disruptions in executive management relating to such change;
Reference response in Exhibit A.

iii. the likelihood that such change will continue during the proposed period of Project construction;
Reference response in Exhibit A.

iv. the projected full extent, nature and impact, positive and negative, of such change experienced and
anticipated to be experienced in the proposed period of Project construction;

Reference response in Exhibit A.

v. how such change is anticipated to affect the organizational and financial capacity and ability of the
relevant entity to remain engaged in the procurement described in the RFP and to ultimately
participate in the Project as anticipated by the relevant Proposal.

Reference response in Exhibit A.

Part Il. In accordance with Section 3.1.2.b of the Financial Proposal Instructions, set out below are
estimates of the impact of the material change on:

i. revenues;

Reference response in Exhibit A.

ii. expenses;

Reference response in Exhibit A.

iii. change in equity availability.

Reference response in Exhibit A.

Part lll. In accordance with Section 3.1.2.c of the Financial Proposal Instructions, if the material change
will have a negative financial impact, an explanation of measures that have been taken, are currently in

progress or would be reasonably anticipated to be taken to insulate the Project from any such material
change:

Reference response in Exhibit A.
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EXHIBIT D-1

Changes in Defined Benefit Plans: During the year ended December 30, 2016, the Company (CH2M)
adopted an amendment for one of our United States defined benefit plans, the OMI Plan, to freeze future
pay and benefit service accruals beginning in 2017 for non-union participants, resulting a gain on
curtailment of 54.6 million in our net periodic pension expense and a $3.0 million reduction in our
projected benefit obligation. There was also an additional gain of $1.2 million due to settlements within
several small end-of-service benefit plans in the Middle East during the year ended December 30, 2016,
which resulted in a $6.1 million reduction to our projected benefit obligation.

On October 4, 2016, Halcrow Group Limited (“HGL”), a subsidiary of CH2M, effected a transaction to
restructure the benefits provided to members of the Halcrow Pension Scheme (“HPS”), a defined benefit
plan sponsored by HGL, by providing each member with the option to transfer his or her benefits in the
HPS to a new pension scheme, which is also sponsored by HGL (“HPS2”). Alternatively, members had the
option to remain in the HPS which will enter the Pension Protection Fund (“PPF”) under a regulated
apportionment arrangement. The new scheme, HPS2, provides benefits that are better than the
compensation that would otherwise be paid by the PPF if a member chose to join the PPF rather than
HPS2. The PPF was created by the United Kingdom Pensions Act 2004 to provide compensation to
members of eligible defined benefit pension schemes when an employer of the scheme can no longer
support the pension scheme. A member that transferred to HPS2 will receive substantially similar
benefits to those in the HPS, except that annual increases and revaluation of benefits are reduced to
statutory levels. A pension scheme member of the HPS that elected to transfer to the new scheme also
received a one-time uplift to benefits of either 1.0% or 2.5%. The Pension Regulator, which is the United
Kingdom’s executive body that regulates work-based pension schemes, and the PPF provided necessary
regulatory approvals for the transaction to restructure the HPS benefits.

As a result of the transaction described above, HGL ceased to have any further obligations to the HPS on
October 4, 2016. All members who consented to transfer to HPS2 were transferred on October 5, 2016.
Members who agreed to transfer to the new scheme account for 96.6% of the HPS’ liabilities and a
broadly equivalent proportion of the HPS’ assets have transferred to the new scheme, as well as 20% of
HGL’s equity issued as part of the transaction. As a result of the restructured benefits for those members
transferring to HPS2, the projected benefit obligation was reduced by 5362.3 million. Those members
who remained in the HPS began the process of transferring to the PPF during the fourth quarter of 2016
along with the assets that remain in the HPS, as well as 5% of HGL's equity issued as part of the
transaction, resulting in a settlement of 528.4 million and an actuarial gain of 516.2 million within the
projected benefit obligation. We did not incur a gain or loss on settlement as a result of the transaction
as the settlement cost related to the members who remained in HPS was less than the service and
interest cost components of net periodic pension expense for 2016.

Additionally, in connection with the transaction, CH2M issued a £50.0 million, approximately $65.0
million, parent company guarantee to support HPS2 and funded £80.0 million, approximately S104.0
million, to be allocated between HPS2 and the PPF based on the proportion of the HPS’ members that
transferred to HPS2.
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EXHIBIT E

Part I. In accordance with Section 3.1.2.a of the Financial Proposal Instructions, the following sets out a
description of an actual or anticipated material change:

i. such change;

1. Second Lien Indenture: Reference Exhibit E-1.

ii. actual and anticipated changes or disruptions in executive management relating to such change;
Reference response in Exhibit A.

iii. the likelihood that such change will continue during the proposed period of Project construction;
Reference response in Exhibit A.

iv. the projected full extent, nature and impact, positive and negative, of such change experienced and
anticipated to be experienced in the proposed period of Project construction;

Reference response in Exhibit A.

v. how such change is anticipated to affect the organizational and financial capacity and ability of the
relevant entity to remain engaged in the procurement described in the RFP and to ultimately
participate in the Project as anticipated by the relevant Proposal.

Reference response in Exhibit A.

Part Il. In accordance with Section 3.1.2.b of the Financial Proposal Instructions, set out below are
estimates of the impact of the material change on:

i. revenues;

Reference response in Exhibit A.

ii. expenses;

Reference response in Exhibit A.

iii. change in equity availability.

Reference response in Exhibit A.

Part lll. In accordance with Section 3.1.2.c of the Financial Proposal Instructions, if the material change
will have a negative financial impact, an explanation of measures that have been taken, are currently in

progress or would be reasonably anticipated to be taken to insulate the Project from any such material
change:

Reference response in Exhibit A.
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EXHIBIT E-1

Second Lien Indenture: On April 28, 2017, we (CH2M) entered into a Second Lien Indenture through
which we issued Senior Second Lien Notes with an aggregate principal amount of 5$200.0 million at an
annual interest rate of 10% (the “Second Lien Notes”). The Second Lien Notes mature on April 28, 2020,
and interest is payable on May 1 and November 1 of each year, commencing on November 1, 2017. The
net proceeds of the Second Lien Notes are to be used to repay a portion of the outstanding revolving
credit loans under our Credit Facility. The Second Lien Notes are unsubordinated, senior obligations of

CH2M and are secured by second-priority liens on substantially all of CH2M'’s and certain CH2M
subsidiaries’ domestic assets.
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EXHIBIT F

Part I. In accordance with Section 3.1.2.a of the Financial Proposal Instructions, the following sets out a
description of an actual or anticipated material change:

i. such change;

1. Fourth Amendment to Our Credit Agreement: Reference Exhibit F-1.

ii. actual and anticipated changes or disruptions in executive management relating to such change;
Reference response in Exhibit A.

iii. the likelihood that such change will continue during the proposed period of Project construction;
Reference response in Exhibit A.

iv. the projected full extent, nature and impact, positive and negative, of such change experienced and
anticipated to be experienced in the proposed period of Project construction;

Reference response in Exhibit A.

v. how such change is anticipated to affect the organizational and financial capacity and ability of the
relevant entity to remain engaged in the procurement described in the RFP and to ultimately
participate in the Project as anticipated by the relevant Proposal.

Reference response in Exhibit A.

Part Il. In accordance with Section 3.1.2.b of the Financial Proposal Instructions, set out below are
estimates of the impact of the material change on:

i. revenues;

Reference response in Exhibit A.

ii. expenses;

Reference response in Exhibit A.

iii. change in equity availability.

Reference response in Exhibit A.

Part lll. In accordance with Section 3.1.2.c of the Financial Proposal Instructions, if the material change
will have a negative financial impact, an explanation of measures that have been taken, are currently in

progress or would be reasonably anticipated to be taken to insulate the Project from any such material
change:

Reference response in Exhibit A.
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EXHIBIT F-1
Fourth Amendment to Our Credit Agreement:

In connection with the issuance of the Second Lien Notes, on April 28, 2017 we entered into the Fourth
Amendment (“Fourth Amendment”) to our Credit Agreement. The Fourth Amendment allows for the
issuance and sale of the Second Lien Notes, as discussed above, lowers our maximum revolving credit
facility to $875.0 million from 5925.0 million, increases the maximum consolidated leverage ratio, as
defined by the Fourth Amendment, to 4.00x from 3.00x, and modifies the definition of adjusted EBIDTA
as used in the financial covenant calculation.

The obligations of CH2M and its subsidiaries that are either borrowers or guarantors under the Fourth
Amendment are secured by first-priority security interests in substantially all of the domestic assets of
CH2M and such subsidiaries pursuant to Amended Credit Agreement dated as of September 30, 2016. As
a result of the Second Lien Notes and the Fourth Amendment, our remaining unused borrowing capacity
under the Credit Facility was over $300.0 million as of March 31, 2017.
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CH2M

2m:

June 1, 2017

High Performance Transportation Enterprise and Colorado Bridge Enterprise
c/o High Performance Transportation Enterprise

4201 East Arkansas Avenue

Denver, Colorado 80222

Attn: Keith Stefanik, Procuring Authorities' Contact Person

Re. Off Balance Sheet Liabilities Letter
in connection with the Instruction to Proposers for the Central 70 Project (“ITP”)

I, Steven Mathews, in my capacity as Treasurer of CH2M HILL Engineers, Inc. (the “Company”), a member
of the Lead Engineer in Front Range Mobility Group, and not in my personal capacity, deliver this letter

pursuant to Section 3.3 of the Administrative and Technical Proposal Submission Requirements set out in
the ITP and hereby confirm as follows.

There are no off balance sheet liabilities for any fiscal year of the Company in respect of which financial
statements have been submitted in accordance with Section 3.1 of the Administrative and Technical
Proposal Submission Reguirements that exceed $25 million in aggregate in such fiscal year.

Respectfully submitted,

s M it —

Name: Steven Mathews
Title: Treasurer
CH2M HILL Engineers, Inc.
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Central 70 Project: Instructions to Proposers Final RFP
Part H: Form G-3 Addendum No. 1

Front Range
Mability Group

Form G-3: Credit Ratings
Proposer Name: Front Range Mobility Group
Credit Ratings
Role Entity Name Fitch Moody’s | S&P DBRS | Change(s)in any | Describe Change(s)
credit ratings
since SOQ?
EM, LO HOCHTIEF PPP Not Not Not Not [JYes X No
Solutions North rated rated rated rated
America, Inc.
EM, LO | ACS Infrastructure Not Not Not Not [JYes X No
Development, Inc. rated rated rated rated
EM, LO AECOM Capital, Inc. Not Not Not Not [dYes X No
rated rated rated rated
EM John Laing Investments Not Not Not Not OYes X No
Limited rated rated rated rated
LC Flatiron Constructors, Not Not Not Not OYes X No
Inc. rated rated rated rated
LC Dragados USA, Inc. Not Not Not Not OYes X No
rated rated rated rated
LC AECOM Energy & Not Not Not Not [dyes X No
Construction, Inc. rated rated rated rated
LE CH2M HILL Engineers, Not Not Not Not [dyes X No
Inc. rated rated rated rated
LE AECOM Technical Not Not Not Not OYes X No
Services, Inc. rated rated rated rated
FRP HOCHTIEF Not Not BBB Not X Yes [1No Now rated by S&P
Aktiengesellschaft rated rated rated
FRP HOCHTIEF PPP Not Not Not Not [dyes X No
Solutions GmbH rated rated rated rated
FRP HOCHTIEF USA, Inc. Not Not Not Not [dYes X No
rated rated rated rated
FRP ACS Servicios y Not Not Not Not [dYes X No
Concesiones, S.L. rated rated rated rated
FRP AECOM Not Ba2 BB Not X Yes [1No Now rated by S&P in addition
rated rated to Moody'’s; Moody'’s rating
has not changed since the
S0Q
FRP Dragados, S.A. Not Not No